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Our Cover
TEAM EEI encapsulates the unity and teamwork of the EEI family and its partners in
carrying out the game plan and strategies initiated by Management to achieve its 
collective vision.

FOrwArd is an act of leadership -- we will actively aim for expansion, structure for
growth, consistently scout for opportunities and make use of our individual and
collective strengths to work on our goals and targets to be a truly global player.

FORWARD is our direction, the deliberate step we take to move us towards our
charted destination.

FORWARD is our marching order to reach the future we have chosen to create.
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EEI Corporation and Subsidiaries

2008 2007
For the Year

Revenues 9,190 7,483

EBitDA 1,119  578

Net income 506 304

Earnings per Share 0.489 0.304

At Year End

total Assets 7,106 6,463

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,179  659

Bank loans 1,343 1,005

Stockholders’ Equity 2,763 2,245

Financial Ratios

Current Ratio 1.29 1.33

Debt-to-Equity Ratio 1.57 : 1.00  1.88 : 1.00

Book Value per Share 2.67 2.17
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We have many things to be thankful for in 2008. Despite the widespread 
recession across the world, EEI recorded a consolidated income of 
P506 million, a 66% increase from the P304 million made in 2007. This is the 

first time in its 77 years that net income has breached the half-billion peso mark.

As a fitting testament to our resolve to do things right and do things well, EEI has 
also achieved other milestone breakthroughs in safety and quality performance. EEI 
was recognized for logging more than 21 million safe manhours without lost time 
accident for the Serendra Projects in the Fort Bonifacio area – the highest known 
record in the Philippines for a single project.

Equally notable is the recognition received in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA) 
for achieving 35 million safe manhours without lost time accident in our Sharq Project, 
which is being undertaken by our joint venture company, Al Rushaid Construction 
Co., Ltd (ARCC). ARCC is also the first company to be certified by TÜV (Technischer 
Überwachungsverein) in the KSA with ISO 9001:2008, an international standard for 
quality management systems.

We attribute our success in 2008 to the outstanding team of employees we have 
assembled, our technical excellence, culture of quality and commitment to safety, 
and the strategy we have taken to focus and concentrate on our foreign markets. The 
robust orders from our Middle East operations and the export fabrication contracts 
from overseas projects enabled us to maximize operating results and report solid 
results.

New Corporate Vision and Mission
During the year, we unveiled our new Corporate Vision, “Dream it and we will 

Build it!”, and established our Mission to be a partner of the global engineering and 
construction industry. Our new Vision-Mission statements very simply, yet clearly, 
establish our goals and financial targets. Carrying out our mission and working 
towards the realization of the vision requires a coherent strategy and the sustained 
dedication of EEI’s employees at all levels of the organization.

For us to reach the targets, we need to work as a team, consolidate our human 
resources and operational capabilities, and have a presence in markets where 
opportunities abound to enable the Company to attain the performance levels 
necessary to accomplish the year-on-year growth.

Focused Strategy
In the last five years, we have seen the swings of the economy, from the precarious 

and slow to galloping growth. When investments and construction started gathering 
momentum and exhibiting double-digit growth, we filled up our orders book for 
domestic projects across all industry sectors.

Message to 

sHAREHolDERs
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At the same time, we observed the growth of the Middle East market as the rise in oil prices propelled the 
economies of the countries in the region. Your Management saw the opportunities and moved quickly to tap new 
projects, beginning with the US$300 million Sharq petrochemical project in the KSA in 2006. Since then, we have 
proceeded to win various contract packages and major projects from other clients in the KSA and in other parts 
of the world.

As a consequence, the share of gross orders, production and revenues from overseas operations over the last 
three years, relative to the total, has increased significantly. Overseas orders backlog now exceed three times that 
of domestic contracts, and more than half of our workforce are deployed abroad. In addition, more than 10% of 
our frontline personnel are working in our fabrication business, which in the past three years has almost exclusively 
produced fabricated modules for overseas export markets.

The increasing number of contracts to serve overseas markets clearly demonstrates the reputation for quality, 
speed, reliability, and safety achieved by EEI in the international front.

Forward Team EEI
The shift in our business focus to the international market has not only provided a cushion to the impending 

slowdown in the domestic construction activity. Overseas projects provides significantly better financial returns to 
our assets and resources. In addition, our widening overseas engagement has also raised the bar of excellence for 
EEI since this market is more value-driven and performance-focused. Global customers demand higher standards 
of productivity, reliability, project delivery, safety and quality.

As we deepen our engagement in the global market, our people gain more experience and exposure and 
become immersed in international best practices and state-of-the-art methodologies. This has resulted in higher 
levels of individual and team performance. EEI is determined to continuously improve and grow its international 
business in line with its new vision.

To move forward with our plans, we have identified strategic growth drivers in the 
medium term which must be integrated into the very fabric of the Company and its 
operations. These follow from the strategies and actions initiated by Management in 
the recent past.

First is the expansion of our organizational leadership and management 
resources. We continue to beef up our training and organization development 
team to formulate leadership development programs to enhance EEI’s 
management capability that serves as the backbone of our operating 
efficiency.

We have likewise expanded our trade and crafts skills training for our 
front-line manpower and supervisory personnel. EEI has constructed an 
Electro-Mechanical Plant Simulator, the first and only one of its kind in the 
Philippines thus far, which has proven to be effective instructional tool to 
hasten the development of front-line project workers.

Second, we are reinforcing our end-to-end logistics capability to 
maximize efficiencies in operational activities from procurement, materials 
handling and distribution, manpower and equipment mobilization to construction 
management. Integral to the supply chain discipline is the constitution of strategic 
alliances and partnerships with suppliers and subcontractors for more competitive 
bids and better operating effectiveness.
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Chairman of the Board

ROBERTO JOSE L. CASTILLO
President and CEO

Third, we are actively expanding and structuring for growth in our fabrication business. Our 
steel fabrication shop is one of the strengths of EEI in exploiting foreign markets. In the second 
half of 2008, we won contract packages from Shaw Energy for the fabrication of structural 
modules for the Exxon Mobil Olefins Project in Singapore. This came as a fitting follow-up to 
the successful completion of projects for fabrication of modular assemblies for the Inco Goro 
Nickel Mining plant in New Caledonia.

The prospects for the domestic fabrication of engineered structures and assemblies for 
export to oil and gas facilities, mining plants and petrochemical processing plants remain bright. 
We aim to take advantage of our proven reputation for world-class excellence and quality in 
the field to deepen our involvement in the heavy industrial construction segment of the global 
market.

Fourth, supporting our growth strategy is the gearing up of the organization to consistently 
be the best in everything we do. A continuous improvement program is currently being developed 
to raise levels of individual and team productivity to global standards, while harnessing the 
creativity and energy of employees in providing innovation and process enhancements in 
methodologies and the use of materials, construction tools and equipment.

Lastly, more than ever, we are increasing emphasis and awareness in our efforts to conduct 
our business profitably with responsibility. In unity with other YGC members, we are continuing 
to assess how we can reduce the size of our carbon footprint, reduce – if not eliminate – the 
waste we generate, conduct our operations with the highest level of concern for the protection 
of life and the environment, and contribute our share in sustainable nation building.

Profitability builds on our financial muscle which will allow us to take on more projects and 
value adding activities. More projects means more jobs generated. Our commitment is to ensure 
financial security to our employees and their families, mutual satisfaction with subcontractors, 
our creditors and suppliers, and investment returns to our stockholders. This, to us, is the true 
essence of sustainability.

Outlook
The year 2008 was, so far, the best for EEI. The Company has overcome the financial difficulties 

of the first half of this decade and has moved decisively to reinforce its operational capability, 
and significantly improved its financial standing. EEI has shown its fundamental strengths and 
resilience, and demonstrated the validity of its strategies and execution of its plans during the 
last few years. At this critical crossroads, we have drawn a working blueprint for our future. This 
is articulated in our new Vision-Mission statements which serve as our game plan to weather 
and even thrive in the years ahead. We are confident that our new directions will provide us the 
business focus and guidance to move Team EEI forward into the future.
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Dream It & We Will Build It!
We envision EEI to have expanded capabilities in 
designing, building and fabricating structures, industrial 
facilities, and modular assemblies of any nature, and 
provide the necessary skill and expertise to undertake
any project.

We envision a stronger, faster and better EEI having 
conquered more shores and recognized abroad for its 
excellent work and safety records.

If it has to be built, EEI can build it.

EEI is the World’s Partner in 
Construction.
EEI has the broadest range of general and specialty 
construction and engineering services in the Philippines. 
For more than 78 years, EEI has been providing 
construction and fabrication services across the whole 
spectrum of industry, being a partner in growth, progress 
and nation building.

EEI has built power plants, refineries, petrochemical 
plants, cement plants, mining facilities, industrial plants, 
buildings, schools, hospitals, roads, bridges, seaports, 
airports, mass transport and railways, water distribution 
stations, irrigation and flood control systems, and steel
structures and modular assemblies.

EEI has done these through skilled and talented people 
who deliver excellent and quality work in countries in 
the Middle East, Africa, Asia-Pacific, Micronesia and all 
over the Philippines, and is a preferred contractor of 
Global Engineering, Procurement and Construction 
Companies.

As the world’s partner in construction, we have gone boldly to the center of the 
action – the international market.  We have been daring, but we have also been 
prudent, by choosing the geographic markets where our capability is accepted and 
recognized, and selecting the industries where our expertise is established.

 
Our continued inroads in the global arena, our growing reputation for timeliness  
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and delivering superior quality, and the recognition received from our customers, 
affirm that we are headed in the right direction.

We now take the next step.  We have the roadmap.  We have created our 
future.

  FORWARD, TEAM EEI!
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EEI – Bringing Filipino Construction 
Capability to the World

EEI is recognized as one of the Philippines’ leading construction companies.  EEI has 
not just made inroads, but has established a strong presence in tough territorial markets 
of the global arena because of its ability to deliver world-class quality.

The recent flow of projects in the overseas 
market commenced with the US$300 million 
Balance-of-Plant and furnace construction, 
erection and commissioning works for the 
Eastern Petrochemical Project also known as 
Sharq.  EEI is not new in the Middle East market, 
but the Sharq Project is one of the largest to 
be awarded in recent years to a Philippine 
contractor in terms of scope and manpower 
mobilization.

Ongoing ARCC Construction Projects in the Middle East
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The Company’s thrust 
towards expansion re-
quires a sufficient number 
of qualified workers espe-
cially for future contracts.

Hence, EEI has insti-
tuted a comprehensive 
technical crafts training 
and development pro-
gram to produce ready 
manpower for mobiliza-
tion and deployment.  It 
has forged partnerships 
with the Technical Education and Skills Development Authority and 
private training institutes to provide continuing development resourc-
es and programs for jobs needed for projects.

In 2008, it built and commenced operation of an Electro-Mechani-
cal Plant Facility Simulator and Welding Laboratory in partnership with 
the Ang Mananampalatayang Gumagawa Skilled Hands Training Cen-
ter Inc. (AMG), a non-government organization, based in San Ildefonso, 
Bulacan.  EEI and AMG have been providing technical training and 
skills improvement for construction workers since 2005 and deploying 
workers in various projects in the Philippines and in Saudi Arabia.

This training facility is the first and only one of its kind in the Philip-
pines and provides hands-on exposure and practice of trade skills in a 
simulated construction working environment.  This complements the 
classroom technical training to students and at the same time, empha-
sizes the EEI-accredited practices and methodologies to ensure safety 
in the workplace.

EEI has been align-
ing its training and de-
velopment programs 
with global standards 
for contractors.  It is 
putting in place man-
agement and supervi-
sory development pro-
grams to complement 
staff level skills and 
knowledge training, as 
it expands its manage-
ment bench needed for 
expansion.

EEI, through its joint venture Al-
Rushaid Construction Co., has gathered 
momentum with major projects spread 
across Saudi Arabia.  Recently, EEI won 
contract packages for a project in 
Qatar, with more in the development 
pipeline.

With these successes and the still 
growing demand overseas, our business 
focus has shifted. The Middle East 
remains a robust construction market 
in the oil and gas, petrochemical and 
power sectors.  The near-term goal is 
to make further breakthroughs in other 
regions and in other industry markets.

The Company has earned a 
reputation for its sterling performance, 
pristine safety record, on-time delivery 
and world-class quality. EEI, going 
global, is proudly Filipino.

Training for Expansion
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Gearing Up to Fabricate the Structural and 
Process Modules for the World

Our success in moving forward is determined by our ability to scout for opportunities and make use of 
our strengths.  Steel fabrication, both as a business and as a technological competence, represents such 
opportunity and strength for EEI Corporation. This capability is well proven and recognized by global 
clients, as demonstrated by world class precision-fabricated modules it has accomplished that conform 
to the exacting engineering, quality and schedule requirements of Engineering, Procurement and 
Construction players.

Thus, the Company has embarked on an expansion and modernization program for the Steel Fabrication 
business, particularly to serve the international market.

The ISO 9001 certified steel fabrication shop is a competitive strength of EEI. Modular construction of 
engineered steel structural, electro-mechanical and process facilities has become the preferred mode by 
global EPCs due to its superior comparative advantage over total on-site fabrication and construction.

It first undertook the fabrication works for boiler assemblies for two power plants of Kawasaki Heavy 
Industry in Okinawa, Japan. More than 12 million tons of steel plant modules were shipped and exported to 
Japan from the shop’s jetty in Batangas.

It undertook fabrication of structural and process plant modules for various facilities 
of the Goro Nickel Mining project in New Caledonia in the South Pacific, completed 
over a two year period ending in the first quarter of 2008.

And most recently, EEI started module fabrication packages worth Singapore $57 
million for the Stone & Webster (S&W) project for the expansion of the Exxon Mobil 
Refinery in Singapore beginning the fourth quarter of 2008.  In addition, it completed 
two major domestic projects -- building structurals for the Biscom Sugar Refinery 
project in Negros and the Hanjin shipyard complex in Subic, modules for the JGC Coral 
Bay Mining project in Palawan and the steel structures and pipe spools for Wyeth 
Philippines’ new manufacturing plant in Laguna.

To take advantage of continuing demand for modular steel construction, EEI began 
a P150 million capital program in 2008 to expand its fabrication shop’s production 
capacity and raise efficiencies across all production areas.
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The EEI Fabrication Shop – Producing World-Class Engineered 
Steel Structural Products. The Shop is ISO 9001:2000 registered 
operation with a pier that has an ISPS Certificate (International 
Shipping and Port Security). It also boasts of a registered Custom 
Bonded Manufacturing Warehouse that allows the duty-free 
entry of raw materials, and export of finished products for the  
international market.

New facilities were acquired and installed for the carbon steel pipe spooling 
production line, including state-of-the-art automatic pipe cutting, automatic 
welding machines, pipe rotators and rollers, and materials handling 
equipment. The combined investment effectively raised capacity for carbon 
steel pipe spool production to 50,000 Ø-inches per month.

Moreover, the Company built a new facility and doubled capacity by 
installing a new Autoblast Machine for blast cleaning and painting of 
structural steels and pipes. The process flow for finishing was streamlined 
and improved, with the addition of equipment for environment-friendly 
dust-collection system.

The expansion and renovation of the shop for the stainless steel pipe 
spooling was likewise completed during the year. In addition, the area of 
the fabrication yard used for module assemblies has been expanded to 4.5 
hectares to make room for expected increased orders and jobs from foreign 
principals.

The expanded and modernized production facilities are supported by a 
new Administration building and a welding laboratory for welders training, 
product testing and qualification.

In the medium term, the expansion program for Steel Fabrication involves 
the acquisition of a second shop site in a strategic location with the 
necessary road and port infrastructure to ensure sufficient space to serve the 
growing demand for engineered modular products.

Indeed, the Steel Fabrication business is taking the lead in moving EEI 
forward.
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Management’s Discussion of 
Operations

From more than 7% growth in 2007, Philippine GDP slowed 
down to 4.6% in 2008 in the wake of the worsening recession in 
the US, Japan, Europe and other developed economies.

Construction spending was tempered from the 21% growth 
the previous year to 6% in 2008, principally due to the contraction 
in public sector construction.  Private sector spending remained 
robust, however, as real estate pipeline projects continued 
through the year in the high-rise office and residential sector, 
malls and commercial properties, hospitals, and business process 
outsourcing (BPO) zones and office centers.

Capital expansion in plant capacities in the industrial sector 
on the other hand posted a decline in growth rate in 2008 as a 
result of uncertainties arising from the global financial debacle.  
Investments in capital formation declined 7% from a 3% growth 
in 2007, reflected in reduced expenditures in 13 out of the 20 
types of fixed asset investments.

Financial Highlights

In spite of the slower growth in the Philippine economy, EEI 
capitalized on its robust orders book and submitted impressive 
financial results in 2008.

Consolidated revenues increased a hefty 23 % from P7.48 
billion to P9.19 billion during the year in review as the Company 
benefited from sustained production from its construction 
contracts.  Revenues from construction totaled P8.650 billion, 
up 27% from the P6.82 billion posted in 2007.  EEI’s consolidated 
revenues have been on the uptrend since 2004.

The Company posted equity in net earnings of associates 
and joint ventures amounting to P631 million, compared to the 
P356 million earned in 2007.  Also, it registered other income 
of P250 million in 2008, compared to P95 million the previous 
year.

Consolidated costs increased at a slower pace of 21% from 
P6.83 billion in 2007 to P8.33 billion.  Fuel prices and the cost 
of construction materials pulled back after experiencing steep, 
runaway levels in the first semester as the global recession 
began to dampen demand and soften commodity prices across 
the globe.

Consolidated net income before tax nearly doubled from 
P415 million to P816 million during the year in review.  The 
Company had a net provision for tax of P310 million, almost 
three times that of the P111 million in 2007.

The Philippine economy began to feel the impact of the global economic downturn in the fourth quarter of 2008, as evidenced by negative 
growth in merchandise trade, reported lay-offs in export-oriented semiconductor and other industries, and lower private consumption 
expenditures, in spite of the acceleration in overseas remittances.

Thus, consolidated net income after tax reached P506 million 
in 2008, an increase of 66% from the 2007 earnings of P304 million.  
On a per share basis, after tax earnings jumped to P0.49 from the 
P0.30 in 2007.

In terms of its balance sheet, EEI continued to show 
improvement.  Consolidated total assets stood at P7.80 billion as 
of the end of the year 2008, representing an increase of 10% over 
the previous year.

The Company increased its investments in its overseas 
subsidiaries and affiliates in line with its international expansion 
activities.  On the domestic front, the rise in the value of property, 
plant and equipment resulted from expenditures in the expansion 
and modernization of the Batangas steel fabrication facility, 
which is also in accord with the drive to raise the plant’s modular 
fabrication capacity to serve the overseas market.

EEI achieved improved liquidity during the year as consolidated 
current assets increased 6% from P5.40 billion to P5.73 billion as of 
the end of the year in review.  Cash and cash equivalents jumped 
79% to P1,179 million.  The Company’s current ratio remained 
healthy at 1.24.

Stockholders’ equity improved from P2.25 billion to P2.76 
billion as a result of the marked increase in retained earnings due 
to the positive operating results of the Company.

The Company continued to post gains in reducing its debt 
load, with debt-to-equity ratio lower at 1.57 : 1.00 as of the end of 
the year, an improvement from the 1.88 : 1.00 in 2007.

Parent Company Operations

The downward trend in over-all construction activity, 
particularly in the industrial sector, began to manifest itself in 2008 
in the wake of the global recession.

EEI obtained new domestic orders and contracts totaling 
P2.19 billion in 2008, a significant decline from the P4.98 billion in 
2007.  Offshore, it improved its orders book with new cumulative 
contracts worth P9.57 billion (about US$201.35 million) won during 
the year.  Domestic orders backlog was computed at P3.73 billion 
from the P4.73 billion as of the end of 2007.  On the other hand, 
overseas orders backlog totaled P14.75 billion at the end of 2008, 
slightly lower than the P15.28 billion the previous year.

With the decline in domestic projects and the ramp-up of new 
overseas contracts, EEI is now largely an international contractor, 
with overseas backlog outstripping that of domestic projects 
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fourfold.  The shift in the Company’s business has led to the 
concentration of its project assets and manpower overseas.

In 2008, EEI had a peak manpower complement of 18,400 
people, more than half of whom were located offshore, with about 
1,400 personnel stationed in the Inco Goro Nickel Mining project 
in New Caledonia and about 8,000 in projects in Saudi Arabia.  In 
addition, another 1,000 employees work in the Batangas steel 
fabrication shop that catered mainly to the modular fabrication 
requirements of the New Caledonia-based Goro project.

The Company’s joint venture, Al Rushaid Construction 
Company Ltd., won contract packages in three new projects 
totaling US$275 million in 2008 in light of the continued strength 
of the powerhouse Saudi Arabian economy.

Sustaining its strides that began in 2007 with its US$318 
million worth of contract packages for Eastern Petrochemical 
Company, ARCC secured new orders during the year from Saudi 
Aramco for the flare tips replacement project, the new Shuqaiq 
power and desalination plant of the Mitsubishi Heavy  Industries 
(MHI) and a project for the replacement of boiler tubes in a power 
plant in Qurrayah, all in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

In the latter part of the year, EEI acquired the Qatargas 3 & 4 
Onshore Project from GAMA Qatar Company under the Chiyoda-
Technip Joint Venture.  The US$12 Million project, in general, 
involves pipe erection works of inlet facilities which covers civil 
and electromechanical works for utilities, offsite and off-plot areas 
of the project.  Mobilization started and the construction works are 
expected to be in full swing by January of 2009, with approximately 
1,500 workers over the 10-month duration of this project.

Further bolstering its international reputation as a global 
contractor, it also won a major package for the fabrication 
of Piperack Modules for Shaw Stone Webster Asia Inc.  worth 
US$40 million.  The fabrication project – which is currently being 
undertaken at the ISO 9001 certified Batangas fabrication plant – is 
part of the Singapore Parallel Train (SPT) Olefins Recovery Project 
at Jurong Island, Singapore being built for Exxon Mobil Chemical 
Asia Pacific.

In the Philippines, EEI completed major projects in 2008.  The 
Petro Fluid Catalytic Cracker (FCC) project of Daelim of Korea for 
the Petron Refinery was commissioned and turned-over in the first 
semester of the year.  Work packages for the Petron BTX Project, 
as well as other turnaround works, were awarded in the first half 
of the year for the petrochemical downstream facilities of Petron 
in Bataan.

The civil, structural, electro-mechanical and piping contract 
works for the JGC Corporation in the Coral Bay Nickel Mining 
project in Rio Tuba, Palawan, the structural and electro-mechanical 
construction contracts for Wyeth Philippines’ new manufacturing 
plant in Laguna, and ISGEC John Thompson’s Ingasco storage tank 
project were likewise completed during the year.

The Company also won a contract for structural fabrication 
works for the Biscom Sugar Refinery of the Chan group.

In the high-rise building sector, the Company finished and 
turned over the Fairways Tower, and the Serendra Phase 2A in Fort 
Bonifacio, Makati Medical Center Annex building in Makati City 
and the GA Tower 2 in Mandaluyong City to project owners.

Currently under construction are the One Serendra Phase 2B 
and Two Serendra Phase 2B packages of the Ayala Group in the Fort 

Bonifacio totaling 21-buildings, the 39-storey Mandarin Square 
Building, which promises to be one of the tallest in the Binondo 
district, the Beacon Tower 1 of new property developer Geo Estate 
Holdings, and the 60-storey twin-tower St.  Francis Shang Towers of 
Kuok Properties, which will be the tallest buildings in the country 
when completed in 2009.

The Company acquired and is undertaking sub-structure and 
civil work packages of the GA Sky Suites in Quezon City owned by 
Globe Asiatique Realty Holdings Corporation.

In infrastructure, construction of various work packages of 
the Department of Public Works and Highways’ NAIA 3 Villamor 
Skyway project is close to completion.  Additional structural work 
packages (construction of toll plaza) have been awarded but for 
implementation in 2009.

Likewise, the Company is undertaking the P2.84 billion joint 
venture project with Hanjin Heavy Industries & Construction 
Co.  Ltd.  (Hanjin) for the construction of Berth 6 of the Manila 
International Container Terminal of Philippine global port operator 
International Container Terminal Services Inc.  (ICTSI).  EEI has a 
30% stake in the project.

Business Outlook

The economy is generally believed to experience a tempered 
growth, with many independent analysts estimating GDP expansion 
to slow down to below 4% in 2009.  Overseas remittances are 
anticipated to decline due to the recession in many host countries 
of Filipino expatriates, while unemployment is seen to worsen in 
the export-oriented industries during the year.

Corporate profits are seen to be flat if not lower than 2008, 
which, coupled with the stagnant direct and portfolio foreign 
investment flows, will tend to push back capital investments and 
new projects, thus affecting the domestic construction industry.

The Philippine economy has always been resilient because 
of its large population base and stable consumption spending.  
The government’s preparation of an economic stimulus plan and 
its intention to undertake infrastructure projects, along with the 
country’s healthy fiscal standing, is anticipated to mitigate the 
onslaught of the global economic crisis.

Because the Company is positioned in the Middle East market 
and in the oil, gas and petrochemical industries, management 
remains cautiously optimistic about the Company’s short to 
medium-term prospects.

The Company shall continue to take advantage of the strong 
Middle East economy to sustain its financial performance.  In spite 
of the global economic crisis, the Middle East, in particular the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, is expected to continue its expansion 
and modernization for its oil, gas, petrochemical and other heavy 
industries this year and beyond.

Management shall strive to leverage its well-earned 
reputation in industrial and electro-mechanical construction to 
tap opportunities and win new orders and contracts from global 
Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC) companies.

Moreover, management will continue to fortify cost 
management programs to manage the risks arising from the global 
financial turmoil and the anticipated slowdown in the construction 
market.  It will embark on a corporate-wide quality and productivity 
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improvement program harnessing the participation and initiative 
of its employees to identify and initiate continuous improvement 
of business and operating processes and methods across the 
organization.

Equipment Engineers, Incorporated

Equipment Engineers, Inc.  (EE) sustained the momentum 
of 2007’s strong rebound from the previous year’s loss with an 
identical after tax net income of P18.04 million for 2008.

The machinery and equipment trading and service business 
faced a challenging environment.  Total revenue declined 11% to 
P157.44 million from P176.82 million in 2007 as indent commissions 
and sales of parts and services decreased, particularly during the 
last quarter, as major customers either canceled or deferred capital 
expenditure purchases.

EE’s bottom line held steady, despite the drop in revenues, 
reflecting its management’s resiliency, and resolve in controlling costs 
and squeezing higher margins from stock sales and service jobs.

During the year, major orders for CETCO Bentonite 
waterproofing materials were served for various property 
developments of DMCI Homes, Avida Land and Ayala Land 
(Waterstop); the sanitary landfills of IPM Construction and 
Cleanway Technologies in Morong, Rizal and Silang, Cavite 
respectively (Bentomat); and high-rise condominiums of Daiichi 
Properties and ASEC Development (Voltex).  The strategy to push 
dealer development continued to deliver results highlighted by a 
66 % revenue growth in this sector.

Other major orders served were Hyundai excavators for CM 
Pancho; UPP fuel pipes for Pilipinas Shell and Petron; TAC building 
management systems for four branches of Fitness First (MOA, 
Trinoma, The Fort, and Alabang) and the TRANSCO substation 
projects of Asea Brown Boveri (ABB) in Zamboanga and Subic; 
Ametek power instruments for Transco, Meralco, and Petron; BTI 
rockbreaking equipment for Philex Mining; and Kabel power 
cables for Atlas Mining’s Carmen Copper unit.

The industrial machinery market faces a difficult short term 
outlook due to general cut-backs on investment spending on 
fixed assets and capital expansion to cope with the economic 
uncertainties and slowdown.

EE plans to nurture existing customers and product lines for 
steady profits and cash flow, continuously build up its trading 
product portfolio to expand coverage of industries and specific 
accounts.

The company’s transformation into the EEI Group’s supply 
chain management (SCM) arm was completed with the launching 
of an e-procurement system (EPS) designed to automate the 
procurement process, facilitate long-term vendor and contractor 
relationships for voluminous, repetitively-purchased materials 
and equipment, and enable sharper focus on strategic sourcing 
initiatives.

EE will leverage SCM capabilities to spawn new business 
opportunities and integrate its core equipment marketing 
business with the e-procurement system to offer a complete range 
of product sourcing and logistics management solutions to other 
EEI subsidiaries, YGC member firms, and eventually to other local 
construction, property, and engineering companies.

EEI Power Corporation

EEI Power Corporation (EPC) registered revenues of P46.09 
million in 2008, slightly higher than the P43 million earned the 
previous year.  The top-line performance of the company was 
beyond expectations considering the termination of the operation 
and management contract with Mariwasa Siam Ceramics and 
the Creative Diecast Philippines in the second semester, both of 
which shut down operations due to the difficulties associated with 
skyrocketing oil prices during the early part of the year, and the 
ensuing global economic crisis in the second semester.

EPC compensated by taking advantage of the service contract 
with the Commonwealth Utilities Corporation of Saipan for the 
repair and rehabilitation of its 80MW diesel-fired power plant 
during the year.  The Company also stepped up its power plant 
rehabilitation service business with the expansion to maritime 
customers.  It obtained service contracts with Herma Shipping and 
Subic Dockyard during the year in review, with other customers in 
the development pipeline.

On account of the positive operating results, gross profit 
jumped 63% to P17 million during the year.  In addition, EPC 
gained a one-off income amounting to P8 million, representing 
the contract buy-out by Creative Diecast arising from the project 
termination.

Thus, net income after tax leaped from P1.37 million to P8.75 
million in 2008.

Moving forward, the Company aims to further tap opportunities 
and expand the marketing of its power plant service business to 
the maritime companies, as well as traditional manufacturing and 
other customers, both in the Philippines and in proximate overseas 
markets in the South Pacific.

EPC has re-organized to focus on and cater to the service 
business, while strengthening its staff capability for the complete 
electro-mechanical rehabilitation and maintenance of power 
plants.

EPC is also undertaking business development efforts in the 
area of renewable energy, with specific focus on the mini-hydro 
generation and distribution field.

EEI Construction and Marine, Incorporated

EEI Construction and Marine Inc.  (ECMI) marked the year with 
a remarkable improvement in operating performance over 2007.

Revenues leaped more than two-fold to P205.48 million 
against P98.52 million in 2007 on account of higher orders from 
external customers and from sub-contract work from the parent 
company’s construction division.  As a result, gross contribution 
jumped 26% to P41.31 million, while net income after tax improved 
to P12.90 million.

The Company took advantage of the legally mandated 
retail distribution of ethanol blended gasoline by the top three 
petroleum players and continuing robust requirements from the 
parent company for the construction of vertical cone roof (VCR) 
tanks.

ECMI undertook major contract works for Petron for the 
fabrication and installation of ethanol blending facility for its 
Mandaue (Cebu) terminal and a medium-capacity VCR tanks during 
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the year.  It also fabricated and installed ethanol mixing facilities 
and constructed and repaired VCR tanks of various capacities 
at different sites for Chevron, Philippines (formerly Caltex) and 
likewise an ethanol facility for Pilipinas Shell in its Pandacan oil 
terminal.

It was also engaged by the parent company for the construction 
of tanks for its various projects, including the construction of 
caustic soda tanks for Batangas Bay Terminal Inc.  (BBTI) and a VCR 
tank for Wyeth Philippines’ new manufacturing plant in Laguna.

In spite of the anticipated slowdown in the over-all 
construction industry, ECMI enters 2009 with a healthy workable 
backlog.  The full implementation of the Biofuels Act during the 
year represents opportunities in the petroleum sector, including 
the alcohol refining and distilling manufacturing industry which 
serves as feedstock for the new generation of environment-friendly 
petroleum products.

EEI Realty Corporation

EEI Realty Corporation finished the year with healthy financial 
results.

It continued to build on its momentum registering gross 
revenues of P190 million, up 9% over the P175 million in 2007, 
because of the continued take-up of its projects.  This was in spite 
of the onset of the effects of the global economic crisis, which 
resulted in the contraction in the OFW market segment in the 
fourth quarter.

Net income after tax declined from P17 million the previous 
year to P13 million in 2008 in view of higher costs of construction 
materials (notably steel, re-bars and cement) during the first half 
of the year.

The Suburbia East Marikina provided the bulk of orders and 
production for EEI Realty, with reservations and sales topping up 
to cumulative gross sales value of P776 million by yearend.  Site 
development of Suburbia East Phase 3 is currently on-going with 
83 housing residential packages to be constructed in the pipeline 
for future sales.

Real estate demand is likely to soften in 2009 because of 
the uncertainties associated with the global economic crisis and 
the slowdown in the domestic economy.  The company plans to 
step up cost-cutting efforts, even as it takes advantage of the 
normalization of prices of construction materials during the year 
to improve operating efficiencies.

Gulf Asia International Corporation

Gulf Asia International Corporation (GAIC) Group posted 
excellent performance in 2008.

Buoyed by significant orders from EEI’s overseas projects and 
traditional clients, it posted consolidated revenues of P283 million, an 
increase of 12% over P252 million the year before.  Consolidated net 
earnings decreased by 11% from P43 million to P39 million in 2008.

The company served a significant volume of manpower 
requirements of the parent company’s (EEI) overseas projects 

in the Middle East, New Caledonia and other  countries, which 
contributed a substantial share to GAIC’s total revenues for the 
year.  Improvements were likewise registered with the booking 
of additional orders from traditional clients in the Middle East, 
Canada, Australia, Malaysia, Singapore and Indonesia.  Manpower 
placement contracts from new clients were acquired in the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the United Arab Emirates and from 
Slovenia, a newly developed market.

Revenues could have been higher if not for the cancellation 
of job orders from major clients in Canada, Australia and United 
Arab Emirates (UAE) towards the end of the year due to the adverse 
effects of the global financial crisis.

GAIC Manpower Services, Inc.  (GAMSI) – the Group’s domestic 
manpower supply subsidiary – continued to be a major contributor 
to GAIC’s operating results.

Revenues totaled P181 million, an increase of 19% from 2007.  
Net income after tax, on the other hand, increased 45% from P5.78 
million to P8.41 million this year.  New janitorial and building 
maintenance service contracts were acquired from external 
customers, which added to the fine performance of the company.  
The Yuchengco Group of Companies remains the major customer 
of GAMSI.

Meanwhile, GAIC Professional Services, Inc.  (GAPSI) – 
another GAIC 100%-owned subsidiary which provides outsourced 
accounting, administrative and other backroom services, registered 
a net income after tax of P4.14 million in 2008, 30% higher than the 
previous year’s P3.19 million.

GAIC is scheduled in 2009 to undertake the merger of GAMSI 
and GAPSI, both fully-owned subsidiaries, to maximize efficiencies 
and streamline common functions, while taking advantage of 
business synergies and ensuring superior customer service.  GAMSI 
will be the surviving corporate entity and will absorb and take over 
all existing accounts of GAPSI.

With this incorporation, GAMSI is expected to maintain if not 
improve its performance in 2009.  GAMSI will continue to explore 
other related business opportunities to augment its existing 
business and services previously operated by GAPSI.  GAMSI will 
also continue to expand its operations in Cebu, Bacolod, Cagayan 
de Oro and Davao.

On the whole, the GAIC Group anticipates another good and 
profitable year in 2009.  The business outlook for manpower and 
outsourced business process services remains bright, despite the 
prevailing slowdown in certain job markets particularly those 
greatly affected by the global financial crisis.

The company will focus on marketing efforts to acquire 
projects in least affected industries and market areas, specifically in 
the hotel and tourism sector, malls, fast food chains and hospitals 
in the Middle East, Africa and some countries in Asia.

It aims to generate increased business from its newly 
acquired clients in Slovenia, KSA and UAE.  It also plans to explore 
opportunities in emerging markets such as Romania, South 
America, New Zealand and Africa.  Manpower requirements from 
traditional accounts in Libya, Saudi Arabia, UAE, Qatar, Angola and 
Malaysia are likely to maintain job orders.
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY 

FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
 
 
 
The management of EEI Corporation is responsible for all information and representations contained in the consolidated 
financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006.  The consolidated financial statements have 
been prepared in conformity with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) and reflect amounts that are based on the 
best estimates and informed judgment of management with an appropriate consideration to materiality. 
 
In this regard, management maintains a system of accounting and reporting which provides for the necessary internal controls 
to ensure that transactions are properly authorized and recorded, assets are safeguarded against unauthorized use or 
disposition and liabilities are recognized.  The management likewise discloses to the Company’s audit committee and to its 
external auditor: (i) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls that could adversely affect its 
ability to record, process and report financial data; (ii) material weaknesses in the internal controls; and (iii) any fraud that 
involves management or other employees who exercise significant roles in internal controls. 
 
The Board of Directors reviews the consolidated financial statements before such statements are approved and submitted to 
the stockholders of the Company. 
 
Sycip, Gorres, Velayo & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has examined the consolidated 
financial statements of the Company in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the Philippines and has 
expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such examination, in its report to the Board of 
Directors and stockholders. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
RIZALINO S. NAVARRO   ROBERTO JOSE L. CASTILLO  GAUDENCIO S. HERNANDEZ, JR. 
          Chairman         President            Senior Vice President 
   Board of Directors        & Chief Executive Officer        & Chief Finance Officer 

 

Statement of management’S ReSponSibility
foR ConSolidated finanCial StatementS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
 
 

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors 

EEI Corporation 

No. 12 Manggahan Street 

Bagumbayan, Quezon City 
 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of EEI Corporation and Subsidiaries, which comprise the 
consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated statements of income, consolidated 
statements of changes in stockholders’ equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the 
period ended December 31, 2008, and the summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 
 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 

with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.  This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and 

maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting 

policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 
 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted our 

audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that we comply with 

ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial 

statements are free from material misstatements. 
 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 

Opinion 
 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 

EEI Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and their financial performance and their cash flows for 

each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. 
 
 

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO. 
 
 
 
 

Davee M. Zuñiga 

Partner 

CPA Certificate No. 88990 

SEC Accreditation No. 0665-A 

Tax Identification No. 160-302-953 

PTR No. 1566481, January 5, 2009, Makati City 
 

March 20, 2009 

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. 
6760 Ayala Avenue 
1226 Makati City 
Philippines 
 

Phone: (632) 891 0307 
Fax: (632) 819 0872 
www.sgv.com.ph 
 
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001 
SEC Accreditation No. 0012-FR-1 
 

 

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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period ended December 31, 2008, and the summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 
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maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
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financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
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financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 

Opinion 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES 
 

 

 

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors 

EEI Corporation 

No. 12 Manggahan Street 

Bagumbayan, Quezon City 

 

 

 

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial statements of 

EEI Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 and for the years ended December 31, 

2008, 2007 and 2006 included in this Form 17-A and have issued our report thereon dated March 20, 2009.  Our 

audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a 

whole.  The schedules listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules are 

the responsibility of the Company’s management.  These schedules are presented for purposes of complying 

with the Securities Regulation Code Rule 68.1 and SEC Memorandum Circular No. 11, Series of 2008 and are 

not part of the basic consolidated financial statements.  These schedules have been subjected to the auditing 

procedures applied in the audit of the basic consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state in 

all material respects the financial data required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic consolidated 

financial statements taken as a whole. 

 

 

 

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO. 

 

 

 

Davee M. Zuñiga 

Partner 

CPA Certificate No. 88990 

SEC Accreditation No. 0665-A 

Tax Identification No. 160-302-953 

PTR No. 1566481, January 5, 2009, Makati City 

 

March 20, 2009 

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. 
6760 Ayala Avenue 
1226 Makati City 
Philippines 
 

Phone: (632) 891 0307 
Fax: (632) 819 0872 
www.sgv.com.ph 
 
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001 
SEC Accreditation No. 0012-FR-1 
 

 

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited26            EEI   
2008 Annual report



EEI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
 
 December 31 

 2008 2007 

ASSETS   

Current Assets   
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4, 29 and 30) P=1,179,353,668 P=658,662,935 
Receivables - net (Notes 5, 14, 29 and 30) 2,182,248,901 1,703,828,652 
Due from related parties (Notes 25, 29 and 30) 55,152,923 144,644,747 
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted 

contracts (Note 6) 729,219,688 1,185,635,890 
Inventories (Notes 7, 14 and 16) 479,065,504 565,469,081 
Available-for-sale securities (Notes 10 and 29) 58,734,354 58,734,354 
Other current assets (Note 8) 372,272,994 472,152,605 

  Total Current Assets 5,056,048,032 4,789,128,264 

Noncurrent Assets   
Available-for-sale securities (Notes 10 and 29) 46,835,216 40,404,818 
Investments in associates and joint ventures (Note 9) 623,741,437 462,246,426 
Property, plant and equipment - net (Notes 11 and 16) 594,961,452 382,404,283 
Investment properties (Notes 12 and 14) 213,689,064 209,995,386 
Deferred tax assets (Notes 3 and 24) 90,801,928   77,880,772 
Other noncurrent assets (Notes 13, 25, 29 and 30) 479,924,576 501,000,893 

  Total Noncurrent Assets 2,049,953,673 1,673,932,578 

 P=7,106,001,705 P=6,463,060,842 

   

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY   

Current Liabilities   
Bank loans (Notes 14, 29 and 30) P=1,342,900,000 P=1,005,375,000 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Notes 15, 29 and 30) 1,755,743,786 1,370,051,081 
Income tax payable (Note 24) 211,600,938 99,312,959 
Due to related parties (Notes 25, 29 and 30) 6,045,336 7,642,536 
Customers’ deposits 16,839,177 17,831,699 
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted 

contracts (Note 6) 454,122,382 1,103,140,806 
Current portion of long-term debt (Notes 16, 29 and 30) 143,333,334 10,000,000 

  Total Current Liabilities 3,930,584,953 3,613,354,081 

Noncurrent Liabilities   
Long-term debt - net of current portion (Notes 16, 29 and 30) 324,386,653 486,038,581 
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 24) 7,142,096 11,850,444 
Other noncurrent liabilities 81,122,216 106,452,196 

  Total Noncurrent Liabilities 412,650,965 604,341,221 

  Total Liabilities 4,343,235,918 4,217,695,302  

Equity   
Capital stock (Notes 17, 30 and 33)  1,036,401,386 1,036,251,282  
Additional paid-in capital (Notes 32 and 33) 476,996,525 476,270,490 
Cumulative translation adjustment (Note 9) (8,747,858) (76,993,198)
Retained earnings (Note 32) 1,256,874,296 802,353,425 
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 4,962,228 11,204,331 
Treasury stock (3,720,790) (3,720,790)

  Total Equity 2,762,765,787 2,245,365,540 

 P=7,106,001,705 P=6,463,060,842 

   

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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EEI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
 
 Years Ended December 31 

 2008 2007 2006 

REVENUE    
Construction contracts P=8,647,294,750 P=6,822,708,927 P=4,704,796,222 
Services 230,669,528 335,277,292 355,066,952 
Real estate sales 190,362,769 175,135,335 124,835,029 
Merchandise sales 122,096,515 149,621,479 74,675,081 

 9,190,423,562 7,482,743,033 5,259,373,284 
Equity in net earnings of associates and joint 

ventures (Note 9) 631,166,417 356,223,179 197,517,178 
Interest income 55,194,740 64,365,057 13,868,944 
Other income (Note 23) 249,883,610 95,365,486 37,552,472 

 10,126,668,329  7,998,696,755 5,508,311,878 

COSTS    
Construction contracts (Note 18) 7,869,369,505 6,342,987,901 4,257,169,039 
Services (Note 19) 213,491,734 241,471,097 203,154,675 
Real estate sales 147,744,885 131,892,931 83,176,069 
Merchandise sales (Note 20) 102,938,275 115,298,386 55,351,972 

 8,333,544,399 6,831,650,315 4,598,851,755 

SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENSES (Note 21) 703,475,507 535,144,179 390,764,132 

FINANCE COSTS    
Interest expense - short term debt 215,175,821 102,843,328 192,620,045 
Interest expense - long term debt 43,061,936 63,558,496 27,150,404 
Foreign exchange loss - net 15,015,342 50,579,084 47,912,671 

 273,253,099 216,980,908 267,683,120 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 816,395,324 414,921,353 251,012,871 

PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) 
INCOME TAX (Note 24)    
Current 327,691,298 137,503,611 69,739,980 
Deferred (17,629,504) (26,667,062) (18,951,603) 

 310,061,794 110,836,549 50,788,377 

NET INCOME (Note 27) P=506,333,530 P=304,084,804 P=200,224,494 

Earnings Per Share - Basic and Diluted  
(Note 27) P=0.4886 P=0.3038 P=0.2188 

    

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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EEI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
 
 Years Ended December 31 

 2008 2007 2006 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    

Income before income tax  P=816,395,324 P=414,921,353 P=251,012,871 
Adjustments for:    
 Interest expense 258,237,757 166,401,824 219,770,449 
 Equity in net earnings of associates and joint  

ventures (Note 9) (631,166,417) (356,223,179) (197,517,178) 
 Depreciation and amortization (Notes 11 and 22) 100,056,622 61,058,912 66,165,850 
 Interest income (55,194,740) (64,365,057) (13,868,944) 
 Gain on sale of land classified as held-for-sale and property 

and equipment − − (32,624,729) 

Operating income before changes in working capital  488,328,546 221,793,853 292,938,319 
 Decrease (increase) in:    
  Receivables (471,291,007) 176,040,010 (414,666,442) 
  Due from related parties 65,096,605 (71,155,578) 66,809,994 
 Cost and estimated earnings in excess of billings on 

uncompleted contracts 456,416,202 (336,721,902) 314,265,442 
  Inventories 86,403,577 55,035,300 144,607,143 
  Other current assets 99,879,611 (247,401,775) 3,833,530 
 Increase (decrease) in:    
  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 411,226,666 39,120,281 226,304,677 
  Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on 

uncompleted contracts (650,010,945) (214,131,608) (81,549,118) 

Net cash generated from (used for) operations  486,049,255 (377,421,419) 552,543,545 
Interest received 58,443,702 56,778,220 13,779,005 
Interest paid (287,282,436) (170,771,268) (254,091,989) 
Income taxes paid (202,824,707) (68,712,662) (42,052,068) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 54,385,814 (560,127,129) 270,178,493 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  56,155,546 5,500,039 18,055,356 
Net reductions in (additions to):    
 Available-for-sale securities (12,672,501) − − 
 Investments in associates and joint ventures − 646,252 62,693,133 
 Property, plant and equipment (Note 11) (372,463,015) (231,384,210) (59,904,121) 
 Other noncurrent assets 21,076,315 12,862,003 6,341,724 
Dividends paid (51,812,569) − − 
Dividends received (Note 9) 551,933,761 63,706,537 65,006,668 
Proceeds from sale of land classified as held-for-sale (Note 25) – – 532,325,000 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 192,217,537 (148,669,379) 624,517,760 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES    

Proceeds from (payments of):    
 Due to related parties (10,665,183) (151,613,138) (88,185,447) 
 Short-term and long-term debt 283,876,426 172,654,201 (220,800,704) 
Net proceeds from stock rights offering (Note 33) − 525,197,741 − 
Receipt from subscription receivable 876,139 7,128,129 21,600 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 274,087,382 553,366,933 (308,964,551) 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND  
CASH EQUIVALENTS 520,690,733 (155,429,575) 585,731,702 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 658,662,935 814,092,510 228,360,808 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR  P=1,179,353,668 P=658,662,935 P=814,092,510 

    

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

30            EEI   
2008 Annual report



 

 

EEI CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 

1. Corporate Information 
 

EEI Corporation (the Parent Company) is a stock corporation incorporated under the laws of the Philippines.  The Parent Company is a 
subsidiary of House of Investments, Inc., which is also incorporated in the Philippines.  The ultimate parent company of EEI Corporation 
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the Group) is Pan Malayan Management and Investment Corporation.  The registered 
office address of the Parent Company is No. 12 Manggahan Street, Bagumbayan, Quezon City. 

 
The Parent Company is engaged in general contracting and construction equipment rental.  The Parent Company’s subsidiaries and associates 
are mainly involved in the provision of manpower services, construction, trading of construction equipment and parts, power generation, 
steel fabrication and real estate.  The Parent Company’s subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are mainly Philippine companies 
incorporated in the Philippines.  EEI (BVI) Limited (EEI BVI) and its subsidiary, Clear Jewel International, Limited, were incorporated 
in the British Virgin Islands. EEI Nouvelle-Caledonie SARL, another subsidiary of EEI BVI, was incorporated in New Caledonia.  
Al-Rushaid Construction Company Limited (ARCC), an associate of EEI BVI, was incorporated in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. 

 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group were approved and authorized for issue by its Board of Directors 
(BOD) on March 20, 2009. 

 
 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Basis of Preparation 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except available-for-sale (AFS) 
securities which have been measured at fair value.  The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine 
Peso (P=), which is also the Parent Company’s functional currency. 

 
Statement of Compliance 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). 

 
Changes in Accounting Policies 
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the adoption of the following Philippine 
Interpretations which became effective on January 1, 2008, and an amendment to an existing standard that became effective on July 1, 2008:   
 

• Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 11, PFRS 2, Group and Treasury Share Transactions 
 
This Interpretation requires arrangements whereby an employee is granted rights to an entity’s equity instruments to be accounted 
for as an equity-settled scheme by the entity even if: (a) the entity chooses or is required to buy those equity instruments (e.g., 
treasury shares) from another party, or (b) the shareholder(s) of the entity provide the equity instruments needed.  It also provides 
guidance on how subsidiaries, in their separate financial statements, account for such schemes when their employees received 
rights to the equity of the parent company.  The adoption of this Interpretation did not have any effect on the financial position or 
performance of the Group. 

 

• Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangement 
 

This Interpretation covers contractual arrangements arising from public-to-private service concessions arrangements if control of 
the assets remain in public hands but the private sector operator is responsible for construction activities as well as for operating 
and maintaining the public sector infrastructure.  This Philippine interpretation did not have any effect on the Group’s financial 
statements as the scope of the work as specified in its contract with the Government is mainly for construction. 
 

• Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 14, PAS 19, The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their 

Interaction 
 
This Interpretation provides guidance on how to assess the limit on the amount of surplus in a defined benefit scheme that can be 
recognized as an asset under PAS 19, Employee Benefits.  The adoption of this Interpretation did not have any effect on the 
financial position or performance of the Group. 

 

• Amendments to PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures  

 
The Amendments was approved locally by the Financial Reporting Standards Council on October 29, 2008 and adopted by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on November 14, 2008.  The Amendments are in response to requests by regulators to 
enable companies to record financial instruments formerly held-for-trading (HFT) at amortized cost, thereby reducing the 
reported profit or loss volatility.  Transfer from HFT to held-to-maturity or available-for-sale can be done on any date from July 1, 
2008 to November 14, 2008, but can only be done once.   
 
This does not result in any reclassification of financial instruments between current and non-current assets in the consolidated 
balance sheet. 
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The Group has early adopted PFRS 8, Operating Segments in January 1, 2008.  This Standard requires disclosure of information 
about the Group's operating segments and replaces the requirement to determine primary (business) and secondary (geographical) 
reporting segments of the Group.  Adoption of this Standard did not have any effect on the financial position or performance of 
the Group.  The Group determined that the operating segments were the same as the geographical segments previously identified 
under PAS 14 Segment Reporting.  The disclosures about each of the operating segments are shown in Note 28, including the 
revised comparative information. 
 
The Group did not early adopt the following new and revised standards and interpretations that have been approved but are not 
yet effective: 

 

• Amendment to PAS 1, Amendment on Statement of Comprehensive Income 
 
This Amendment will become effective for financial years beginning on or after January 1, 2009.  It introduces a new statement 
of comprehensive income that combines all items of income and expenses recognized in the profit or loss together with ‘other 
comprehensive income’ (OCI).  Entities may choose to present all items in one statement, or to present two linked statements, a 
separate statement of income and a statement of comprehensive income.  This Amendment also requires additional requirements 
in the presentation of the balance sheet and owner’s equity as well as additional disclosures to be included in the consolidated 
financial statements.   

 

• PAS 23, Borrowing Costs 
 
The revision on this standard will become effective for financial years beginning on or after January 1, 2009.  The standard has 
been revised to require capitalization of borrowing costs when such costs relate to a qualifying asset.  A qualifying asset is an 
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale.  In accordance with the transitional 
requirements in the standard, the Group will adopt this as a prospective change. Accordingly, borrowing costs will be capitalized 
on qualifying assets with a commencement date after January 1, 2009.  No changes will be made for borrowing costs incurred to 
this date that have been expensed. 
 

• Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes 
 
This Interpretation requires customer loyalty award credits to be accounted for as a separate component of the sales transaction in 
which they are granted and therefore part of the fair value of the consideration received is allocated to the award credits and 
deferred over the period that the award credits are fulfilled.  The adoption of this Interpretation did not have any effect on the 
financial position or performance of the Group. 

 

• Amendment to PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation and PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Puttable 

Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation 
 

These amendments specify, among others, that puttable financial instruments will be classified as equity if they have all of the 
following specified features: (a) the instrument entitles the holder to require the entity to repurchase or redeem the instrument 
(either on an ongoing basis or on liquidation) for a pro rata share of the entity’s net assets; (b) the instrument is in the most 
subordinate class of instruments, with no priority over other claims to the assets of the entity on liquidation; (c) all instruments in 
the subordinate class have identical features; (d) the instrument does not include any contractual obligation to pay cash or 
financial assets other than the holder’s right to a pro rata share of the entity’s net assets, and; (e) the total expected cash flows 
attributable to the instrument over its life are based substantially on the profit or loss, a change in recognized net assets, or a 
change in the fair value of the recognized and unrecognized net assets of the entity over the life of the instrument. 

 

• Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 16, Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation 

 
This Interpretation provides guidance on identifying foreign currency risks that qualify for hedge accounting in the hedge of net 
investment; where within the group the hedging instrument can be held in the hedge of a net investment; and how an entity should 
determine the amount of foreign currency gains or losses, relating to both the net investment and the hedging instrument, to be 
recycled on disposal of the net investment. 
 

Effective in 2010 

Revised PFRS 3, Business Combinations and PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 
The revised PFRS 3 introduces a number of changes in the accounting for business combinations that will impact the amount of 
goodwill recognized, the reported results in the period that an acquisition occurs, and future reported results.  The revised PAS 27 
requires, among others, that (a) change in ownership interests of a subsidiary (that do not result in loss of control) will be accounted for 
as an equity transaction and will have no impact on goodwill nor will it give rise to a gain or loss; (b) losses incurred by the subsidiary 
will be allocated between the controlling and non-controlling interests (previously referred to as ‘minority interests’); even if the losses 
exceed the non-controlling equity investment in the subsidiary; and (c) on loss of control of a subsidiary, any retained interest will be 
remeasured to fair value and this will impact the gain or loss recognized on disposal.  The changes introduced by the revised PFRS 3 
must be applied prospectively, while changes introduced by revised PAS 27 must be applied retrospectively with a few exceptions.  
The changes will affect future acquisitions and transactions with non-controlling interests. 

  
Amendment to PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement – Eligible Hedged Item 

Amendment to PAS 39 addresses only the designation of a one-sided risk in a hedged item, and the designation of inflation as a hedged 
risk or portion in particular situations.  The amendment clarifies that an entity is permitted to designate a portion of the fair value 
changes or cash flow variability of a financial instrument as a hedged item. 
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Effective in 2012 

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreement for Construction of Real Estate 

This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that undertake the construction of real estate 
directly or through subcontractors.  This interpretation requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon 
completion, except when such contract qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under PAS 11, Construction Contracts, or 
involves rendering of services in which case revenue is recognized based on stage of completion.  Contracts involving provision of 
services with the construction materials and where the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer on a continuous 
basis, will also be accounted for based on stage of completion. 

 
Improvements to PFRS 
In May 2008, the International Accounting Standards Board issued its first omnibus of amendments to certain standards, primarily with 
a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording.  There are the separate transitional provisions for each standard: 
 
PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations 
When a subsidiary is held for sale, all of its assets and liabilities will be classified as held for sale under PFRS 5, even when the entity 
retains a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.  

 
PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements 
Assets and liabilities classified as held for trading are not automatically classified as current in the balance sheet.  
 
PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment 
The amendment replaces the term ‘net selling price’ with ‘fair value less costs to sell’, to be consistent with PFRS 5, Non-current 

Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations and PAS 36, Impairment of Asset.  
 
Items of property, plant and equipment held for rental that are routinely sold in the ordinary course of business after rental, are 
transferred to inventory when rental ceases and they are held for sale.  Proceeds of such sales are subsequently shown as revenue.  Cash 
payments on initial recognition of such items, the cash receipts from rents and subsequent sales are all shown as cash flows from 
operating activities. 
 
PAS 19, Employee Benefits 
Revises the definition of ‘past service costs’ to include reductions in benefits related to past services (‘negative past service costs’) and 
to exclude reductions in benefits related to future services that arise from plan amendments.  Amendments to plans that result in a 
reduction in benefits related to future services are accounted for as a curtailment. 
 
Revises the definition of ‘return on plan assets’ to exclude plan administration costs if they have already been included in the actuarial 
assumptions used to measure the defined benefit obligation. 
 
Revises the definition of ‘short-term’ and ‘other long-term’ employee benefits to focus on the point in time at which the liability is due 
to be settled. 
 
Deletes the reference to the recognition of contingent liabilities to ensure consistency with PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities 

and Contingent Assets. 
 

PAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosures of Government Assistance 
Loans granted with no or low interest rates will not be exempt from the requirement to impute interest.  The difference between the 
amount received and the discounted amount is accounted for as a government grant. 

 
PAS 23, Borrowing Costs 
Revises the definition of borrowing costs to consolidate the types of items that are considered components of ‘borrowing costs’, i.e., 
components of the interest expense calculated using the effective interest rate method. 
 
PAS 28, Investment in Associates 
If an associate is accounted for at fair value in accordance with PAS 39, only the requirement of PAS 28 to disclose the nature and extent of any 
significant restrictions on the ability of the associate to transfer funds to the entity in the form of cash or repayment of loans applies.  
 
An investment in an associate is a single asset for the purpose of conducting the impairment test.  Therefore, any impairment test is not 
separately allocated to the goodwill included in the investment balance.  

 
PAS 31, Interest in Joint Ventures 
If a joint venture is accounted for at fair value, in accordance with PAS 39, only the requirements of PAS 31 to disclose the commitments 
of the venturer and the joint venture, as well as summary financial information about the assets, liabilities, income and expense will apply. 

 
PAS 36, Impairment of Assets 
When discounted cash flows are used to estimate ‘fair value less cost to sell’ additional disclosure is required about the discount rate, 
consistent with disclosures required when the discounted cash flows are used to estimate ‘value in use’. 

 
PAS 38, Intangible Assets 
Expenditure on advertising and promotional activities is recognized as an expense when the Parent Company either has the right to 
access the goods or has received the services.  Advertising and promotional activities now specifically include mail order catalogues. 
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Deletes references to there being rarely, if ever, persuasive evidence to support an amortization method for finite life intangible assets 
that results in a lower amount of accumulated amortization than under the straight-line method, thereby effectively allowing the use of 
the unit of production method. 

 
PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 
Changes in circumstances relating to derivatives - specifically derivatives designated or de-designated as hedging instruments after 
initial recognition are not reclassifications.  
 
When financial assets are reclassified as a result of an insurance company changing its accounting policy in accordance with paragraph 
45 of PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, this is a change in circumstance, not a reclassification. 
 
Removes the reference to a ‘segment’ when determining whether an instrument qualifies as a hedge. 
 
Requires use of the revised effective interest rate (rather than the original effective interest rate) when re-measuring a debt instrument 
on the cessation of fair value hedge accounting. 

 
PAS 40, Investment Property 
Revises the scope (and the scope of PAS 16) to include property that is being constructed or developed for future use as an investment 
property.  Where an entity is unable to determine the fair value of an investment property under construction, but expects to be able to 
determine its fair value on completion, the investment under construction will be measured at cost until such time as fair value can be 
determined or construction is complete. 

 
Basis of Consolidation and Investments in Subsidiaries 
The consolidated financial statements include the Parent Company and the following companies that it controls: 

 
Subsidiaries Percentages of Ownership 

EEI BVI and subsidiaries 100 

 Clear Jewel International, Limited 100 

 EEI Nouvelle-Caledonie SARL 100 

EEI Construction and Marine Corporation (EEI Marine)  100 

EEI Power Corporation (EEI Power) 100 

EEI Realty Corporation (EEI Realty) 100 

Equipment Engineers, Inc. 100 

Gulf Asia International Corporation and subsidiaries (GAIC) 100 

 GAIC Professional Services, Inc. (GAPSI) 100 

 GAIC Manpower Services, Inc. (GAMSI) 100 

Philrock Construction and Services, Inc. 100 

Philmark Inc. 100 

Bagumbayan Equipment & Industrial Products, Inc. 100 
 

Control is normally evidenced when the Parent Company owns, either directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the voting rights of an 
investee’s capital stock. 

 
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be 
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. 
 
Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar 
circumstances.  Intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated in the consolidation. 

 
Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks.  Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

 
Financial Instruments 
Date of Recognition 

The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the consolidated balance sheets when it becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.  Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame 
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognized on the settlement date.  The Group follows the settlement 
date accounting where an asset to be received and liability to be paid are recognized on the settlement date and derecognition of an 
asset that is sold and the recognition of a receivable from the buyer are recognized on the settlement date. 

 
Financial assets within the scope of PAS 39, Financial Instrument: Recognition and Measurement are classified as either: (a) financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL); (b) loans and receivables; (c) held-to-maturity (HTM) investments; and (d) AFS 
securities.  Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities.  When these are 
recognized initially, financial assets are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at FVPL, directly attributable 
transaction costs.  The Group determines the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and 
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial year-end. 

34            EEI   
2008 Annual report



 
 

Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are accounted for as financial assets or liability at FVPL unless they are 
designated as effective hedging instruments. 

 

Initial Recognition of Financial Instruments  

Financial instruments are recognized initially at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given (in the case of an asset) or 
received (in the case of a liability).  The fair values of the consideration given or received are determined by reference to the transaction 
price or other market prices.  If such market prices are not reliably determinable, the fair value of the consideration is estimated as the 
sum of all future cash payments or receipts, discounted using the prevailing market rates of interest for similar instruments with similar 
maturities.  Except for financial assets carried at FVPL, investments are initially recognized at fair value plus transactions costs that are 
directly attributable to their acquisition. 
 
Determination of Fair Value 

The fair value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the balance sheet date is based on their quoted market price or dealer 
price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.  When 
current bid and asking prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction is used since it provides evidence of the current 
fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances since the time of the transaction.  

 
For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by using appropriate valuation techniques.  
Valuation techniques include discounted cash flow methodologies, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable 
prices exist, and other relevant valuation models. 
 
Derivatives recorded at fair value through profit or loss 

The Parent Company entered into derivative transactions.  Derivative instruments (including embedded derivatives) are carried at 
recorded in the balance sheet at fair value.  Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives during the year that do 
not qualify for hedge accounting are taken directly to the “foreign exchange loss - net” account in the statement of income.  Embedded 
derivatives that are bifurcated from the host financial and non-financial contracts are also accounted for at FVPL. 

 
An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and accounted for as a derivative if all of the following conditions are met: 
a) the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristic of the host 
contract; b) a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and c) the 
hybrid or combined instrument is not recognized at fair value through profit or loss.  The Parent Company assesses whether embedded 
derivatives are required to be separated from the host contracts when the Parent Company first becomes a party to the contract.  
Reassessment of embedded derivatives is only done when there are changes in the contract that significantly modifies the contractual 
cash flows that would otherwise be required. 
 

Day 1 Profit 

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different to the fair value from other observable current market transactions in the 
same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Group recognizes the 
difference between the transaction price and fair value (a Day 1 profit) in the consolidated statement of income unless it qualifies for 
recognition as some other type of asset.  In cases where use is made of data which is not observable, the difference between the transaction 
price and model value is only recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the inputs become observable or when the 
instrument is derecognized.  For each transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recognizing the Day 1 profit amount. 

 
Loans and Receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.  Such 
assets are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.  Amortized cost is calculated 
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and include fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction 
costs.  Long-term receivables are valued using the discounted cash flow methodology.  Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated 
statement of income when the loans and receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process. 
 
The Group’s loans and receivables principally include trade receivables (including retention receivables), advances to officers and employees, 
other receivables, due from related parties, receivables from retirement fund of EEI Corporation and long term receivables (see Note 5). 

 

AFS Securities  

 AFS securities are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as AFS or are not classified in any of the three other 
categories.  After initial recognition, AFS securities are measured at fair value with gains or losses being recognized as a separate 
component of the stockholders’ equity until the investment is derecognized or until the investment is determined to be impaired at 
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in the stockholders’ equity is included in the consolidated statement of 
income.  AFS securities which are expected to be sold within twelve months from the balance sheet date are classified under current 
assets.  Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets. 

 
 The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid 

prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date.  For investments where there is no active market, except for investments in 
unquoted equity securities, fair value is determined using valuation techniques.  Such techniques include using recent arm’s length 
market transactions, reference to the current market value of another instrument which is substantially the same, discounted cash flow 
analysis and option pricing models.  In the absence of a reliable basis of determining fair value, investments in unquoted equity 
securities are carried at cost less allowance for impairment losses, if any. 
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AFS securities in 2008 and 2007 include investments in shares of stock of Hermosa Ecozone Development Corporation and 
investments in golf and club shares (see Note 10). 
 
Other Financial Liabilities 

Other financial liabilities are non-derivative financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.  
These liabilities are carried at cost or amortized cost in the balance sheet.  Amortization is determined using effective interest rate method. 

 
Impairment of Financial Assets 

 The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is 
impaired.  A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of 
impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that 
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be 
reliably estimated.  Evidence of impairment may include indications that a borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant 
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other 
financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as 
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults. 

 
 Assets Carried at Amortized Cost 

For assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.  The carrying amount of 
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account.  The amount of loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. 

 
 If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount 

of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (that, is, the 
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).  The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the 
use of an allowance account.  The amount of the loss shall be recognized in the consolidated statement of income. 
 
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was 
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed.  Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the 
consolidated statement of income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. 

 
Assets Carried at Cost 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value cannot be 
reliably measured, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. 

 
AFS Securities 

For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or 
group of financial assets is impaired. 

 
In the case of equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, this would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of 
the investments below its cost.  Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition 
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in the consolidated statement of 
income - is removed from equity and recognized in the consolidated statement of income.  Impairment losses on equity investments are not 
reversed through the consolidated statement of income.  Increases in fair value after impairment are recognized directly in equity. 
 
Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities 
Financial Assets 

 A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when: (a) 
the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; (b) the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has 
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; or (c) the Group 
has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (i) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, or (ii) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 
 
Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing 
involvement in the asset.  Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower 
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay. 
 

Financial Liabilities 

 A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.  Where an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. 

 
Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a 
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and the Group intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset 
and the liability simultaneously. 
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Inventories 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV).  Cost includes purchase price and other costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition.  Cost of inventories is generally determined using the moving-average method, except for land inventory 
of EEI Realty, which is accounted for using the specific identification method.  NRV is the selling price in the ordinary course of 
business, less the estimated costs of completion of inventories and the estimated costs necessary to sell.  
 
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 
Investments in associates and joint ventures are accounted for under the equity method of accounting.  Under this method, the cost of 
investment is increased or decreased by the equity in the associates’ net earnings or losses since the dates of acquisitions and reduced 
by dividends received.  Unrealized intercompany profits are eliminated up to the extent of the proportionate share thereof. 

 
 The reporting dates of the associates, joint ventures and the Group are identical and the associates and joint ventures’ accounting 

policies conform to those used by the Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances. 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment loss. 
 
The initial cost of property, plant and equipment consists of its purchase price, including import duties, taxes and any directly 
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.  Expenditures incurred after the assets 
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to income in the year in which the costs are 
incurred.  In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future economic 
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of 
performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost of property, plant and equipment.  When assets are retired or 
otherwise disposed of, the cost and their related accumulated depreciation and amortization and any impairment in value are removed 
from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is credited to or charged current operations. 
 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

 
 Number of years 
Machinery, tools and construction equipment  5 - 10 
Buildings and improvements 20 
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 2 - 10 
Power plant 15 
Transportation and service equipment 4 

 
Amortization of leasehold improvements is computed over the estimated useful life of the improvement or term of the lease, whichever is shorter. 

 
The useful life and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the period and method of depreciation and 
amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property, plant and equipment. 

 
Minor repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the consolidated statement of income as incurred; significant renewals and betterments 
are capitalized.  When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of the cost or revaluation amount and related accumulated depreciation and 
amortization are removed from the accounts and any resulting gains or losses are reflected in the consolidated statement of income. 
 
Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under construction and is stated at cost.  This includes cost of 
construction, plant and equipment and other direct costs.  Construction in progress is not depreciated until such time that the relevant 
assets are ready for their intended use. 
 
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate 
the carrying values may not be recoverable.  If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated 
recoverable amount, the assets or cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable amounts.  The recoverable amount of an 
asset is the greater of net selling price and value in use.  In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to 
their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the assets.  For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for 
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.  Impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income. 
 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use 
or disposal.  Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized. 

 
The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation and amortization are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 
financial year-end. 
 
Investment Properties 
Investment properties are stated at cost, including transaction costs.  The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an 
existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. 

 
Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property is permanently 
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.  Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of 
an investment property are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the year of retirement or disposal. 
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Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by the end of owner occupation, 
commencement of an operating lease to another party or completion of construction or development.  Transfers are made from 
investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by commencement of development with a view to sale. 

 
Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment, Inventories, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, Deferred Tax Assets and 
Investment Properties 
For property, plant and equipment, inventories, investments in associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets and investment properties, 
the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.  If any such indication exists, or 
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.  An asset’s 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for 
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of 
assets.  Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its 
recoverable amount.  In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
 
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no 
longer exist or may have decreased.  If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.  A previously recognized 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the 
last impairment loss was recognized.  If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.  That 
increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss 
been recognized for the asset in prior years.  Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of income unless the asset is 
carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.  
 
After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any 
residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 
 
Borrowing Costs 
Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred.  Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are directly attributable to the development 
of a qualifying asset.  Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and 
expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred.  Borrowing costs are capitalized until the assets are ready for their intended use.  
If the resulting carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recorded.  Borrowing costs include 
interest charges and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. 
 
Revenue and Cost Recognition 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably 
measured.  The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized: 

 
Construction Contracts 
Revenue from construction contracts are recognized using the percentage of completion method of accounting.  Under this method, 
revenues are generally measured on the basis of estimated completion of the physical proportion of the contract work.  Revenue from 
labor supply contracts with project management and supervision are recognized on the basis of man-hours spent. 
 
Contract costs include direct materials, labor costs and indirect costs related to contract performance.  Provisions for estimated losses 
on uncompleted contracts are recognized immediately when it is probable that the total contract costs will exceed the total contract 
revenues.  The amount of such loss is determined irrespective of: (a) whether or not work has commenced on the contract; (b) the stage 
of completion of contract work; or (c) the amount of profits expected to arise on other contracts.  Changes in contract performance, 
contract conditions and estimated profitability, including those arising from penalty provisions and final contract settlements which 
may result in revisions to estimated costs and gross margins, are recognized in the year in which the changes are determined. 
 
The asset, “Cost and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts”, represents total contract costs incurred and 
estimated earnings recognized in excess of amounts billed.  The liability, “Billings in excess of cost and estimated earnings on uncompleted 
contracts”, represents billings in excess of total contract costs incurred and estimated earnings recognized.  Contract retentions are 
included in the trade receivable account, which is shown as part of the receivables account in the consolidated balance sheet. 

 

Service and Commission Income 
Service and commission income are recognized as the related services are rendered. 
 

Merchandise Sales 
Revenue from merchandise sales is normally recognized when the buyer accepts delivery and when installation and inspection are complete.  
However, revenue is recognized immediately upon the buyer’s acceptance of delivery when the installation process is simple in nature. 

 
Real Estate Sales 
Income on sale of raw parcels of land with no future obligation to develop the property is recognized using the full accrual method. 
 
Sale of developed lots and residential units is accounted for using the full accrual method of accounting.  Under this method, revenue 
from the sale of real estate should be recognized when (a) the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the property; (b) the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with 
ownership nor effective control over the property sold; (c) the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; (d) it is probable that the 
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group; and (e) the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the 
transaction can be measured reliably. 
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If any of the criteria under the full accrual method is not met, the deposit method is applied until all the conditions for recording a sale 
are met.  Pending recognition of sale, cash received from buyers is recognized as deposit from customers presented under the 
“Customers’ Deposit and Advance Billings” account in the liabilities section of the consolidated balance sheet. 
 
Interest Income 
Revenue is recognized as interest accrues (using the effective interest rate method that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset). 

 
Foreign Currency Translation 
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is the Parent’s functional and presentation currency.  
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the consolidated financial statements of each 
entity are measured using that functional currency.   
 
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate at the date of the transaction.  Monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency closing rate at the balance sheet date.  All 
differences are taken to profit or loss.  Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of initial transactions.  Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. 

 
The functional currency of the foreign operations, EEI BVI, is the United States Dollar.  As at reporting date, the assets and liabilities 
are translated into the presentation currency of the Parent Company (the Philippine Peso) at the exchange rate at the balance sheet date 
and, the consolidated statement of income accounts are translated at weighted average exchange rates for the year.  The exchange 
differences arising on the translation are taken directly to a separate component of equity.  
 
Upon disposal of a foreign subsidiary, the deferred cumulative amount recognized in equity relating to that particular foreign operation 
is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. 
 
Retirement Cost 
The Group’s retirement expense is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method.  Under this method, the current 
service cost is the present value of retirement benefits payable in the future with respect to services rendered in the current period.  The 
accrued retirement liability recognized in the consolidated balance sheet is the present value of benefits payable in the future with 
respect to services rendered to date and unrecognized actuarial gains and losses reduced by the fair value of plan assets out of which the 
obligation are to be settled directly and the unamortized additional retirement liability. 

 
Actuarial gains and losses on the excess of the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses of the plan at the end of the 
previous reporting year over 10% of the higher of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at that date are 
recognized as income or expense.  These actuarial gains and losses are recognized over the expected average remaining working lives 
of the employees participating in the plan. 

 
Income Tax 
Current Income Tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or 
paid to the taxation authorities.  The tax rates and the tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially 
enacted at balance sheet date. 

 
Deferred Income Tax 

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the 
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, including asset revaluations.  Deferred tax assets are 
recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income tax 
(MCIT) and net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which 
the deductible temporary differences and carryforward of unused MCIT and NOLCO can be utilized. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities are not provided on non-taxable temporary differences associated with investments in domestic subsidiaries, 
associates, and interests in joint ventures.  With respect to investments in foreign subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint ventures, 
deferred tax liabilities are recognized except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is 
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be used.  Unrecognized deferred tax assets 
are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will 
allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the 
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date. 

 
Deferred income tax relating to items in the stockholders’ equity is also recognized in the stockholders’ equity and not in the 
consolidated statement of income. 
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current 
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same entity and the same taxation authority. 

 
Leases 

 The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date 
whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use 
the asset.  A reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies: 

 
(a) There is a change in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement; 
(b) A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension was initially included in the lease term; 
(c) There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset; or 
(d) There is substantial change to the asset. 

 
Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the change in circumstances gave rise to 
the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c), or (d) and at the date of renewal or extension period for scenario (b). 

 
Operating lease payments are recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 
Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when; (a) the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) where, as a result of a past event; (b) it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and; (c) a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
 
Contingencies 

 Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements.  They are disclosed unless the possibility of an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.  A contingent asset is not recognized in the consolidated financial 
statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 
 
Stock Option Plan 
No benefit expense is recognized relative to the shares issued under the stock options plan.  When the shares related to the stock options 
plan are subscribed, these are treated as capital stock issuances.  The stock option plan is exempt from PFRS 2. 
 
Events after the Balance Sheet Date 

 Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the balance sheet date (adjusting events) are 
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.  Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed when material. 

 
 Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income applicable to common shares by the weighted average number of common 
shares issued and outstanding during the year, after retroactive adjustments for any subsequent stock dividends.  Diluted earnings per 
share, if applicable, is computed by dividing net income applicable to common shares by the weighted average number of common 
shares issued and outstanding during the year after giving effect to assumed exercise of stock options and retroactive effect of stock 
dividends declared. 

 
Segment Reporting 
The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of services provided, with each 
segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets.  Financial information on 
business segments is presented in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.  

 
 

3. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates 
 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the Group to make judgments, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and 
contingent liabilities.  Future events may occur which can cause the assumptions used in arriving at those estimates to change.  The 
effects of any changes in estimates will be reflected in the consolidated financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.  
Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of 
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
 
The following presents a summary of these significant accounting judgments and estimates: 

 
Judgments 
Fair Value of AFS Securities 

The Group treats AFS financial assets as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its 
cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists.  The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires 
judgment.  The Group treats ‘significant’ generally as 20% or more and ‘prolonged’ as greater than 6 months for quoted securities.  In 
addition, the Group evaluates other factors, including the future cash flows and the discount factors of these securities.  The fair value 
of the quoted AFS securities as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to P=19,109,064 and P=26,181,167, respectively (see Note 10). 
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Operating Leases - Group and Lessee 

The Group has entered into various equipment and commercial property leases on its administrative office locations and fabrication 
facilities.  The Group has determined that it does not acquire all the significant risks and rewards of ownership.  In determining whether 
the Group has acquired such risks and rewards, the Group considers, among others, the length of the lease term as compared with the 
life of the leased assets. 
 
Estimates 
Revenue and Cost Recognition 

The Group’s revenue recognition policies require management to make use of estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported 
amounts of revenues and costs.  The Group’s construction revenue is recognized based on the percentage of completion measured 
principally on the basis of the estimated completion of a physical proportion of the contract work. 

 
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the cost and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts amounted to 
P=729,219,688 and P=1,185,635,890, respectively and billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts 
amounted to P=454,122,382 and P=1,103,140,806, respectively. 
 

Estimating Realizability of Claims and Change Orders 

The Group maintains as claims and change orders assets when it is probable that these assets will be realized.  The amount timing of 
recorded expenses would differ if the Group made different estimates.   
 
Estimating Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 
The Group maintains allowances for doubtful accounts at a level considered adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables.  
The level of this allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the collectability of the accounts.  These 
factors include, but are not limited to, the length of the Group’s relationship with the customer, the customer’s payment behavior and 
known market factors.  The Group reviews the age and status of receivables and identifies accounts that are to be provided with 
allowances on a continuous basis. 
 
The amount of timing and recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Group made different judgments or utilized different 
estimates.  An increase in the allowance for doubtful accounts would increase recorded operating expenses and decrease current assets. 
 
The outstanding balance of receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to 
P=2,182,248,901 and P=1,703,828,652, respectively (see Note 5).  
 
Estimating Net Realizable Value of Inventories 

The Group maintains allowance for inventory losses at a level considered adequate to reflect the excess of cost of inventories over their 
NRV.  NRV of inventories are assessed regularly based on the prevailing selling prices of inventories less the estimated cost necessary 
to sell.  Increase in the NRV will increase the carrying amount of inventories but only up to the extent of their original acquisition costs. 
 
The carrying values of inventories as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to P=479,065,504 and P=565,469,081, respectively (see Note 7). 

 

Estimating Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment 
The Group estimated the useful lives of its property, plant and equipment based on the period over which the assets are expected to be 
available for use.  The Group reviews annually the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on factors that include 
asset utilization, internal technical evaluation, technological changes, environmental and anticipated use of the assets tempered by 
related industry benchmark information.  It is possible that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in these 
estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned.  A reduction in estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
would increase recorded depreciation and amortization expense and decrease noncurrent assets. 

 
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the net book value of depreciable property, plant and equipment amounted to P=594,961,452 
and P=382,404,283, respectively (see Note 11). 
 
Non-financial Asset Impairment 

The Group assesses impairment on non-financial assets (i.e., property, plant and equipment, inventories, investments in associates and 
joint ventures, deferred tax assets and investment properties) whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount of a non-financial asset  may not be recoverable.  The factors that the Group considers important which could trigger an 
impairment review include the following: 

 

• Significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results; 

• Significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall business; and 

• Significant negative industry or economic trends. 
 
An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.  The recoverable amount 
is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in use.  The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in 
an arm’s length transaction while value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing 
use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.  Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not 
possible, for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
 
In determining the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use of the assets, the 
Group is required to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the consolidated financial statements. 
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The carrying value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment amounted to P=594,961,452 and P=382,404,283 as of December 31, 2008 
and 2007 respectively (see Note 11) and the carrying value of investment properties amounted to P=213,689,064 and P=209,995,386 as of 
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively (see Note 12). 
 

Retirement Benefits 
The determination of the obligation and cost of retirement benefits is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by 
actuaries in calculating such amounts.  Those assumptions include, among others, discount rates, expected returns on plan assets and 
salary increase rates.  In accordance with PAS 19, actual results that differ from the Group’s assumptions are accumulated and 
amortized over future periods and therefore, generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligation in such future periods.  
While the Group believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the actual experience or 
significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the pension and other retirement obligations.  Accrued retirement 
(included in accounts payable and accrued expenses) amounted to P=11,330,164 and P=13,006,200 as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, 
respectively (see Notes 15 and 26). 
 

Deferred Tax Assets 

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of deferred taxes at each balance sheet date and reduces deferred tax assets to the extent that it 
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.  
However, there is no absolute assurance that each legal entity in the Group will generate sufficient taxable profit to allow all or part of 
its deferred tax assets to be utilized.  Deferred tax assets recognized amounted to P=90,801,928 and P=77,880,772 as of December 31, 
2008 and 2007, respectively (see Note 24). 
 

Contingencies 

The Group is currently involved in various proceedings.  The estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of these claims has been 
developed in consultation with outside counsel handling the Group’s defense in these matters and based upon an analysis of potential 
results.  The Group currently does not believe that these proceedings will have material adverse effect on its financial position.  It is 
possible, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of the 
strategies relating to these proceedings (see Note 31). 
 

 

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

This account consists of: 
 

 2008 2007 

Cash on hand and in banks P=590,413,975 P=451,472,756 
Short-term investments 588,939,693 207,190,179 

 P=1,179,353,668 P=658,662,935 

 
Cash in banks earns interest at the respective bank deposit rates.  Short-term investments are made for varying periods up to three 
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and earn interest at the respective short-term investment rates. 

 
 

5. Receivables - Net 
 

This account consists of: 
 

 2008 2007 

Trade receivables (including retention receivable on construction contracts of 
P=764,690,739 in 2008 and P=578,709,726 in 2007) P=1,582,734,382 P=1,042,789,227 

Advances to suppliers and subcontractors 155,339,441 461,482,022 
Reimbursable taxes 142,638,598 54,563,557 
Consultancy fee 119,482,007 62,281,345 
Refundable from tax authorities 231,891,050 259,653,564 
Advances to officers and employees 24,740,320 29,672,570 
Other receivables 132,031,872 37,635,005 

 2,388,857,670 1,948,077,290 
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 206,608,769 244,248,638 

 P=2,182,248,901 P=1,703,828,652 
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Movements in the allowance for doubtful accounts are as follow: 
 

 2008 

 
Trade 

receivables 

Advances to 
suppliers and 

subcontractors 

Refundable 
from tax 

authorities 
Other 

receivables Total 

Balance at beginning of year P=186,216,410 P=14,726,372 P=10,000,000 P=33,305,856 P=244,248,638 
Provisions during the year 10,079,353 – – 763,393 10,842,746 
Write-offs (9,509,349) – – (66,080) (9,575,429) 
Reversals (29,883,455) – (9,023,731) – (38,907,186) 

Balance at end of year P=156,902,959 P=14,726,372 P=976,269 P=34,003,169 P=206,608,769 

Individually impaired P=156,902,959 P=14,726,372 P=976,269 P=34,003,169 P=206,608,769 
Collectively impaired – – – – – 

Total P=156,902,959 P=14,726,372 P=976,269 P=34,003,169 P=206,608,769 

Gross amount of receivables  
 individually determined to be 
 impaired, before deducting any 
 assessed impairment allowance 

 
 
 

P=156,902,959 P=14,726,372 P=976,269 P=34,003,169 P=206,608,769 

 
 

 2007 

 
Trade 

receivables 

Advances to 
suppliers and 

subcontractors 

Refundable 
from tax 

authorities 
Other 

receivables Total 

Balance at beginning of year P=201,822,833 P=14,726,372 P=10,000,000 P=33,305,856 P=259,855,061 
Provisions during the year 6,493,203 – – – 6,493,203 
Write-offs (20,171,103) – – – (20,171,103) 
Reversals (1,928,523) – – – (1,928,523) 

Balance at end of year P=186,216,410 P=14,726,372 P=10,000,000 P=33,305,856 P=244,248,638 

Individually impaired P=182,547,033 P=14,726,372 P=10,000,000 P=33,305,856 P=240,579,261 
Collectively impaired 3,669,377 – – – 3,669,377 

Total P=186,216,410 P=14,726,372 P=10,000,000 P=33,305,856 P=244,248,638 

Gross amount of receivables 
 individually determined to be 
 impaired, before deducting any 
 assessed impairment allowance P=182,547,033 P=14,726,372 P=10,000,000 P=33,305,856 P=240,579,261 
 

Impairment Assessment  
The main considerations for impairment assessment include whether any payments are overdue or if there are any known difficulties in 
the cash flows of the counterparties.  The Group assesses impairment into two areas: individually assessed allowances and collectively 
assessed allowances. 
 

The Group determines allowance for each significant receivable on an individual basis.  Among the items that the Group considers in 
assessing impairment is the inability to collect from the counterparty based on the contractual terms of the receivables.  Receivables 
included in the specific assessment are the accounts that have been endorsed to the legal department, non-moving account receivables 
and accounts of defaulted agents.  
 

For collective assessment, allowances are assessed for receivables that are not individually significant and for individually significant 
receivables where there is not yet objective evidence of individual impairment.  Impairment losses are estimated by taking into 
consideration the age of the receivables, past collection experience and other factors that may affect collectability.  
 
 

6. Costs, Estimated Earnings and Billings on Uncompleted Contracts 
 

The details of the costs, estimated earnings and billings on uncompleted contracts follow: 
 

 2008 2007 

Total costs incurred P=18,971,922,633 P=16,630,632,057 
Add estimated earnings 1,321,354,853 947,616,710 

 20,293,277,486 17,578,248,767 
Less total billings (including unliquidated advances from contract  
   owners of P=536,107,711 in 2008 and P=991,523,769 in 2007) (20,018,180,180) (17,495,753,683) 

 P=275,097,306 P=82,495,084 

 

The foregoing balances are reflected in the consolidated balance sheets under the following accounts: 
 

 2008 2007 

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts P=729,219,688 P=1,185,635,890 
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts (454,122,382) (1,103,140,806) 

 P=275,097,306 P=82,495,084 
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7. Inventories 
 

This account consists of: 
 

 2008 2007 

Land at cost P=429,226,004 P=483,048,899 

At NRV:   
 Merchandise 32,182,110 48,468,685 
 Construction materials 17,431,336 21,879,749 
 Spare parts and supplies 226,054 12,071,748 

 49,839,500 82,420,182 

 P=479,065,504 P=565,469,081 

 
 The cost of merchandise, construction materials and spare parts and supplies amounted to P=65,485,616, P=53,835,429 and P=226,054, 

respectively as of December 31, 2008 and P=113,489,619, P=27,689,615 and P=33,179,676, respectively as of December 31, 2007.  Land 
included in inventories relates to real estate development projects being undertaken by EEI Realty, either on its own or with other 
parties, as follows: 

 
 2008 2007 

Suburbia East P=147,225,397 P=189,757,550 
Robinson’s Homes, Incorporated (RHI) 213,174,990 216,298,288 

Greenfield Associates Property Development and Holdings, Inc. (Greenfield) 22,233,596 30,032,440 

Raw land 46,592,021 46,960,621 

 P=429,226,004 P=483,048,899 

 
a. EEI Realty has an ongoing project in Suburbia East, Marikina.  The master plan for the 98,009 square meters property project was 

completed and development permit application for the subdivision plan was approved on September 14, 2000 by the city 
government of Marikina.  On May 2, 2002 the Housing and Land Use Regulatory Board (HLURB) issued a Certificate of 
Registration and License to Sell to EEI Realty for the sale of saleable lots/units with lots in Suburbia East Phase I.  Phase I 
development work has been completed.  On May 30, 2003 HLURB issued a certificate of registration and licenses to sell for the 
sale of lots in Phase II which was completed in July 2007.  On November 29, 2007, HLURB issued a certificate of registration 
and licenses to sell for the sale of lots in Phase III, the development is still ongoing. 

 
b. On April 24, 1998, EEI Realty entered into a joint venture (JV) agreement with RHI to contribute certain parcels of land to the JV 

for development by RHI into a residential subdivision.  Under the JV agreement, the share of EEI Realty and RHI on the saleable 
lots shall be 40% and 60%, respectively. 

 
EEI Realty granted RHI the exclusive right to construct housing units on EEI Realty’s share of the saleable lots from the JV project and 
construction of the housing units shall be solely for RHI’s account.  EEI Realty also granted RHI the exclusive marketing rights over its 
share of the saleable lots from the JV project.  EEI Realty shall reimburse RHI for marketing and administration expense of 10% of the 
lot selling price deductible from EEI Realty’s share on every lot sold. 
 
In consideration of EEI Realty’s entering into the JV Agreement, RHI paid EEI Realty P=50 million as noninterest-bearing cash 
advance.  The cash advance shall be liquidated using the proceeds from sale of the lots allocated to EEI Realty.  In 2000, the JV 
started selling developed lots, the proceeds of which were deducted from the cash advance.  As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, 
the outstanding balance of the cash advance, which is shown as part of accounts payable and accrued expenses account in the 
consolidated balance sheets, amounted to P=31,055,086 and P=42,689,401, respectively (see Note 15). 

 
On July 11, 2005, EEI Realty and RHI mutually agreed to reduce the JV area from 72.79 hectares to 13.89 hectares.  The share of 
EEI Realty and RHI on the saleable lot shall be 25% and 75%, respectively, starting May 1, 2005.  The JV area is still being 
managed by RHI, while the remaining area has been turned over to EEI Realty. 
 

c. The amended Memorandum of Agreement dated April 19, 1999 between EEI Realty and Greenfield provided for the following: 
 

• Sale of nine parcels of land with a total area of 133,550 square meters by EEI Realty to Greenfield.  Payment terms include 
the turnover of certain developed lots from the nine parcels of land.  In 2003, eleven developed lots valued at P=48,206,695 
were transferred to EEI Realty as part of this arrangement. 

 

• Contribution of parcels of land with a total area of 111,906 square meters by EEI Realty, as its participating interest, in a 
joint venture project with Greenfield.  Under the terms of the agreement, EEI Realty’s net landowner’s interest shall be in 
the form of developed lots for the residential component and golf club shares for the golf course component, and shall be 
allocated at 30% for EEI Realty and 70% for Greenfield. 
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8. Other Current Assets 
 

This account consists of: 
 

 2008 2007 

Prepaid expenses P=205,670,337 P=301,215,493 
Value-added tax  101,622,193 119,741,636 
Miscellaneous deposits  61,518,570 40,843,932 
Supplies and others 3,461,894 10,351,544 

 P=372,272,994 P=472,152,605 

 
 

9. Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 
 

This account consists of: 
 2008 2007 

Acquisition cost:   
 Balance at beginning of year P=30,222,815 P=56,743,219 
 Disposal and other adjustments during the year (10,080,000) (26,520,404) 

 Balance at end of year 20,142,815 30,222,815 

Accumulated equity in net earnings:   
 Balance at beginning of year 509,016,809 190,626,015 
 Equity in net earnings for the year  631,166,417 356,223,179 
 Dividends received (551,933,761) (63,706,537) 
 Disposal and other adjustments during the year – 25,874,152 

 Balance at end of year 588,249,465 509,016,809 

 608,392,280 539,239,624 
Equity in cumulative translation adjustment 15,349,157 (76,993,198) 

 P=623,741,437 P=462,246,426 

 
The change in equity in cumulative translation adjustment represents exchange differences arising from the translation of financial 
statements of the foreign operations, EEI BVI, whose functional currency is the United States Dollar. 
 
The investments in associates and joint ventures relate to the following associates and joint ventures: 
 

 Percentage of ownership 

ECW Joint Venture Inc. (ECW) 50 
ARCC (operations in Saudi Arabia) 49 
SAEI-EEI Construction Corporation (SECC) 40 

 
ARCC is a joint venture company incorporated in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and engaged in electro-mechanical work, industrial 
plants construction and related works. 
 
On March 10, 2008, the SECC’s Board of Directors (BOD) approved the shortening of the term of SECC’s corporate existence from 
the date of incorporation until September 30, 2008, the effective date of dissolution.  As a result, SECC changed its basis of accounting 
from the going concern basis to the liquidation basis.  Accordingly, the carrying values of the remaining assets as of September 30, 
2008 are presented at estimated realizable values and all liabilities are presented at estimated settlement amounts.  
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The summarized financial information of associates and joint ventures are as follows: 

 
 2008 

 ARCC SECC ECW 

Current assets P=4,105,283,566 P=24,997,182 P=23,626,911 
Noncurrent assets 1,871,031,683 – – 

 Total assets P=5,976,315,249 P=24,997,182 P=23,626,911 

Current liabilities P=4,613,582,325 P=510,151,594 P=42,398 
Noncurrent liabilities 210,485,104 – – 

 Total liabilities P=4,824,067,429 P=510,151,594 P=42,398 

Revenues P=10,181,243,915 P=618,506 P=– 
Cost and expenses (8,893,123,597) (16,618,368) – 

Net income (loss) P=1,288,120,318 (P=15,999,862) P=– 

 
 
 2007 

 ARCC SECC ECW 

Current assets P=2,339,506,334 P=39,979,458 P=23,626,911 
Noncurrent assets 1,197,589,216 – – 

 Total assets P=3,537,095,550 P=39,979,458 P=23,626,911 

Current liabilities P=2,547,573,121 P=8,224,121 P=42,398 
Noncurrent liabilities 65,864,061 500,909,887 – 

 Total liabilities P=2,613,437,182 P=509,134,008 P=42,398 

Revenues P=4,861,539,512 P=10,040,742 P=642 
Cost and expenses (4,134,553,432) (3,302,922) (20,433) 

Net income (loss) P=726,986,080 P=6,737,820 (P=19,791) 

 
 The Group’s share on the net income of ARCC is subject to 20% Saudi Arabian income taxes. 
 
 

10. Available-for-Sale Securities 
 

This account consists of: 
 

 2008 2007 

Quoted shares P=19,109,064 P=26,181,167 
Unquoted shares 86,460,506 72,958,005 

 105,569,570 99,139,172 
Less current portion 58,734,354 58,734,354 

 P=46,835,216 P=40,404,818 

 
The current AFS securities relates to investments in shares of stock of Hermosa Ecozone Development Corporation and MYCVP Com., 
Inc. which are expected to be sold in 2009.  The noncurrent AFS securities include quoted and unquoted golf and club shares. 
 
Rollforward analyses of this account are as follows: 
 

 2008 2007 

Balance at beginning of year P=99,139,172 P=90,347,341 
Movement during the year 13,222,501 (2,412,500) 
Change in fair value (6,792,103) 11,204,331 

 P=105,569,570 P=99,139,172 

 
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the balance of unrealized loss and gain on AFS securities amounted to P=4,962,228 and 
P=11,204,331 respectively. 
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11. Property, Plant and Equipment - Net 
 

The rollforward analysis of this account as of December 31 follows: 
 
 2008 

 

Machinery, 
Tools and 

Construction 
Equipment 

Land, 
Buildings and 

Improvements 

Furniture, 
Fixtures, 

and Office 
Equipment  Power Plant 

Transportation 
and Service 
Equipment 

Construction 
In Progress Total 

Cost        
At beginning of year P=827,083,821 P=121,137,687 P=106,153,113 P=40,653,590 P=96,800,117 P=76,153,306 P=1,267,981,634 
Additions 180,758,699 24,290,742 43,207,540 − 23,157,775 97,354,581 368,769,337 
Retirements/disposals (15,847,650) (2,240,068) (740,398) − (8,674,540) (54,603,281) (82,105,937) 

At end of year 991,994,870 143,188,361 148,620,255 40,653,590 111,283,352 118,904,606 1,554,645,034 

Accumulated depreciation 
and amortization        

At beginning of year 660,409,588 49,627,124 76,858,751 33,449,812 65,232,076 − 885,577,351 
Additions (Note 22) 34,467,166 6,833,562 30,862,071 6,902,191 20,991,632 − 100,056,622 
Retirements/disposals (12,210,333) (5,349,102) (7,068,181) (76,413) (1,246,362) − (25,950,391) 

At end of year 682,666,421 51,111,584 100,652,641 40,275,590 84,977,346 − 959,683,582 

Net book value P=309,328,449 P=92,076,777 P=47,967,614 P=378,000 P=26,306,006 P=118,904,606 P=594,961,452 

 
 2007 

 

Machinery, 
Tools and 

Construction 
Equipment 

Land, 
Buildings and 
Improvements 

Furniture, 
Fixtures, 

and Office 
Equipment  Power Plant 

Transportation 
and Service 
Equipment 

Construction 
In Progress Total 

Cost        
At beginning of year P=721,660,320 P=113,479,395 P=84,835,203 P=40,653,590 P=62,576,993 P=37,874,445 P=1,061,079,946 
Additions 122,617,177 10,258,292 25,143,700 − 35,086,180 38,278,861 231,384,210 
Retirements/disposals (17,193,676) (2,600,000) (3,825,790) − (863,056) − (24,482,522) 

At end of year 827,083,821 121,137,687 106,153,113 40,653,590 96,800,117 76,153,306 1,267,981,634 

Accumulated depreciation 
and amortization        

At beginning of year 634,561,820 47,471,723 71,781,491 30,681,533 59,004,355 − 843,500,922 
Additions (Note 22) 39,250,013 2,610,402 6,054,727 2,768,279 10,375,491 − 61,058,912 
Retirements/disposals (13,402,245) (455,001) (977,467) − (4,147,770) − (18,982,483) 

At end of year 660,409,588 49,627,124 76,858,751 33,449,812 65,232,076 − 885,577,351 

Net book value P=166,674,233 P=71,510,563 P=29,294,362 P=7,203,778 P=31,568,041 P=76,153,306 P=382,404,283 

 
 

12. Investment Property 
 

The rollforward analyses of this account follows: 
 

 2008 2007 

Balance at beginning of year P=209,995,386 P=209,995,386 
Additions 3,693,678 – 

Balance at end of year P=213,689,064 P=209,995,386 

 
 Investment property represents various parcels of land that was held for capital appreciation.  As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the 

estimated fair value of investment properties amounted to P=215,806,898 based on the appraisal report. 
 

The value of the land was arrived at using the Market Data Approach.  In this approach, the value of the land is based on sales and 
listings of comparable property registered within the vicinity.  This method of comparison is based on the assumption that no prudent 
purchaser will buy more than what it will cost him to acquire an equally desirable substitute parcel of land. 
 
 

13. Other Noncurrent Assets 
 

This account consists of: 
 

 2008 2007 

Receivable from EEI Retirement  
Fund Inc. (Note 25) P=441,388,250 P=455,655,751 

Long-term receivables 19,823,827 25,555,491 
Others 18,712,499 19,789,651 

 P=479,924,576 P=501,000,893 

 
The receivable from retirement fund of EEI Corporation resulted from the sale of land by the Parent Company to the Fund.  The 
amount is to be paid by the Fund within seven years with interest rate of 6% per annum (see Note 25). 
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As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, long-term receivables consist of interest-bearing notes with a fifteen-year maturity with step-up 
interest rates (0% interest for the first five years; 10% on the next five years; and 12% on the remaining life of the term). 

 
 

14. Bank loans 
 

This account consists of: 
 

 2008 2007 

Secured bank loans P=557,900,000 P=348,375,000 
Unsecured bank loans 785,000,000 657,000,000 

 P=1,342,900,000 P=1,005,375,000 

 
Bank loans consist of Peso-denominated bank loans with annual interest rates ranging from 8% to 11.51% and 8% to 11.25% in 2008 
and 2007, respectively. 
 
The secured bank loans are collateralized by the Group’s investment properties and land (included under inventories) amounting to 
P=191 million both for December 31 2008 and 2007 and receivables amounting to P=251 million and P=310 million (including retention 
receivables amounting to P=100 million) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 
 
 

15. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 
 

This account consists of: 
 

 2008 2007 

Accounts payable P=748,868,357 P=493,865,036 
Accrued expenses 535,955,446 419,728,164 
Retention payable 177,415,774 172,776,223 
Deferred output taxes 150,408,529 145,582,484 
Advances from joint venture partners (Note 7) 31,055,086 42,689,401 
Others 112,040,594 95,409,773 

 P=1,755,743,786 P=1,370,051,081 

 
Accrued expenses consist of: 

 
 2008 2007 

Accrued salaries and wages P=186,760,369 P=153,891,264 
SSS and other contributions 159,464,747 115,041,082 
Withholding taxes and others 146,262,021 110,260,607 
Accrued interest 15,302,743 12,685,078 
Accrued retirement (Note 26) 11,330,164 13,006,200 
Others 16,835,402 14,843,933 

 P=535,955,446 P=419,728,164 

 
 

16. Long-term Debt 
 

This account consists of: 
 

 2008 2007 

Parent Company   
 Peso-denominated bank loans, payable in quarterly installments 

starting with interest based on the bank’s internal average lending 
rate P=400,000,000 P=400,000,000 

EEI Realty   
Peso-denominated bank loan payable semi-annually starting April 
2007 with interest based on the bank’s internal average  
lending rate 67,719,987 96,038,581 

 467,719,987 496,038,581 
Less current portion 143,333,334 10,000,000 

 P=324,386,653 P=486,038,581 

 
Parent Company 
On October 18, 2006, the Parent Company signed a term loan agreement equivalent to P=400 million with Rizal Commercial Banking 
Corporation (RCBC).  The loan was for a period of five years, inclusive of a two-year grace period on principal repayment and an 
interest based on the bank’s internal average lending rate.  The proceeds of the loan were used to pay short-term bank loans. 

48            EEI   
2008 Annual report



 
 

The Peso-denominated loans as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 are collateralized by a chattel mortgage on certain machinery and 
construction equipment with aggregate net book value of P=323 million. 

 
EEI Realty 
On October 26, 2006, the EEI Realty signed a term loan agreement equivalent to P=125 million with RCBC.  The loan was for a period 
of five years, with no grace period on principal repayment and an interest based on the bank’s internal average lending rate.  The 
proceeds of the loan were used to pay the remaining balance of long-term debt in 2005 and a portion of short-term bank loans. 
 
The long-term debt is secured by a real estate mortgage on nine parcels of land held for sale and development with aggregate book 
value of P=133 million and P=190 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. 

 
The loan agreements covering the loans of the Parent Company and EEI Realty provide certain restrictions with respect to, among 
others, usage of loan proceeds, disposal of properties given as collateral, guaranty of any debt, change in ownership or management set-
up, dividend declaration, merger or consolidation and maintenance of certain financial ratios. 

 
The Group complied with the loan restrictions and requirements. 
 
 

17. Stock Option Plan 
 

The Parent Company’s stock option plan, as amended (Amended Plan), had set aside 35 million common shares for stock options 
available to regular employees, officers and directors of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries. 
 
Under the Amended Plan, the option or subscription price must be equal to the book value of the Parent Company’s common stock but 
not less than 80% of the average market price quoted in the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) for five trading days immediately 
preceding the grant, but in no case less than the par value.  The option or subscription price should be paid over a period of five years in 
120 equal semi-monthly installments.  Shares acquired under the Amended Plan are subject to a holding period of one year. 
 
A summary of the plan availments is shown below. 
 

Number of 
Shares 

Shares allocated under the Original Stock Option Plan 19,262,500 
Shares allocated under the Amended Stock Option Plan 15,737,500 

 Total shares allocated 35,000,000 

Shares subscribed under the Original Stock Option Plan 19,365,815 
Shares subscribed under the Amended Stock Option Plan 10,886,188 

 Total shares subscribed 30,252,003 

Shares allocated at end of year 4,747,997 

 
 No benefit expense is recognized relative to the shares issued under the stock option plan.  When options are exercised, these are 

treated as capital stock issuances.  The stock option plan is exempt from PFRS 2. 
 
 

18. Costs of Construction Contracts 
 

This account consists of: 
 

 2008 2007 2006 

Labor (Note 26) P=4,398,908,590 P=3,141,531,286 P=1,702,310,246 
Equipment costs and others 1,881,634,061 1,690,561,295 1,312,967,011 
Materials 1,533,741,566 1,475,366,119 1,196,538,831 
Depreciation and amortization (Note 22) 55,085,288 35,529,201 45,352,951 

 P=7,869,369,505 P=6,342,987,901 P=4,257,169,039 

 
 

19. Costs of Services 
 

This account consists of: 
 

 2008 2007 2006 

Personnel expenses (Note 26) P=139,488,153 P=202,176,574 P=166,762,392 
Materials 65,293,518 32,706,131 25,999,596 
Depreciation and amortization (Note 22) 6,688,681 4,666,946 4,318,870 
Others 2,021,382 1,921,446 6,073,817 

 P=213,491,734 P=241,471,097 P=203,154,675 
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20. Costs of Merchandise Sales 
 

This account consists of: 
 

 2008 2007 2006 

Inventories P=90,141,801 P=99,604,321 P=50,927,075 
Personnel expenses (Note 26) 3,875,304 8,544,733 1,250,742 
Depreciation and amortization (Note 22) 3,175,797 2,730,072 1,203,635 
Others 5,745,373 4,419,260 1,970,520 

 P=102,938,275 P=115,298,386 P=55,351,972 

 
 

21. Selling and Administrative Expenses 
 

This account consists of: 
 

 2008 2007 2006 

Personnel expenses (Note 26) P=365,238,207 P=255,845,471 P=159,847,323 
Rent 47,448,822 48,043,545 3,415,977 
Taxes and licenses 40,660,256 8,846,723 6,965,511 
Outside services 35,795,132 18,047,801 9,779,348 
Depreciation and amortization (Note 22) 35,106,856 18,132,693 15,290,394 
Travel and transportation 34,710,804 39,310,763 21,773,292 
Professional fees 32,826,699 29,953,649 17,030,549 
Utilities 31,661,907 30,571,345 21,256,204 
Repairs and maintenance 12,757,925 13,420,767 8,290,469 
Supplies 7,579,053 9,898,777 5,561,968 
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 6,575,723 8,357,841 3,484,207 
Provisions for doubtful accounts, inventory writedown 

and other expenses 4,976,402 11,272,002 77,571,151 
Others 48,137,721 43,442,802 40,497,739 

 P=703,475,507 P=535,144,179 P=390,764,132 

 
 

22. Depreciation and Amortization 
 

Depreciation and amortization are charged to the following accounts: 
 

 2008 2007 2006 

Cost of construction contracts  
(Notes 11 and 18) P=55,085,288 P=35,529,201 P=45,352,951 

Selling and administrative expenses  
(Notes 11 and 21) 35,106,856 18,132,693 15,290,394 

Cost of merchandise sold (Notes 11 and 20) 3,175,797 2,730,072 1,203,635 
Cost of services (Notes 11 and 19) 6,688,681 4,666,946 4,318,870 

 P=100,056,622 P=61,058,912 P=66,165,850 

 
 

23. Other Income  
 

This account consists of: 
 

 2008 2007 2006 

Tax reimbursement P=181,601,248 P=50,980,272 P=– 
Recovery of provision for losses 12,723,441 14,129,461 – 
Income from defaults 2,178,248 5,945,144 2,134,281 
Rental income 1,192,349 2,769,526 2,793,462 
Gain on sale of land classified as held for sale – – 32,624,729 
Others 52,188,324 21,541,083 – 

 P=249,883,610 P=95,365,486 P=37,552,472 
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24. Income Taxes 
 

The provision for (benefit from) income tax as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 composed of: 
 

 2008 2007 

Current   
 Domestic P=50,299,805 P=29,002,883 
 Foreign 277,391,493 108,500,728 

 327,691,298 137,503,611 
Deferred   
 Domestic (17,629,504) (26,667,062) 

 P=310,061,794 P=110,836,549 

 
The income tax payable as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 composed of: 
 

 2008 2007 

Domestic P=2,665,291 P=6,501,002 
Foreign 208,935,647 92,811,957 

 P=211,600,938 P=99,312,959 

 
The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows: 

 
 2008 2007 

Deferred tax assets on:   
 Allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory obsolescence and other 

expenses P=40,661,060 P=41,255,096 
 Accrued retirement 46,570,021 5,075,068 
 NOLCO – 19,410,793 
 MCIT – 9,099,254 
 Unrealized foreign currency exchange losses 3,570,847 3,040,561 

 P=90,801,928 P=77,880,772 

Deferred tax liabilities on:   
 Capitalized borrowing cost P=6,294,689 P=10,682,407 
 Unrealized foreign currency exchange gain 847,407 1,168,037 

 P=7,142,096 P=11,850,444 

 
The Group did not recognize deferred tax assets in 2008 nor deferred tax liabilities in 2007 on cumulative translation adjustment.  The 
Group did not also recognize deferred tax liabilities on equity in net earnings of foreign subsidiaries in 2008 and 2007.  The Group 
determined that the reversal of these cumulative translation adjustments and equity in net earnings of foreign subsidiaries can be 
controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will be reversed in the foreseeable future. 
 
The Group did not recognize any deferred tax assets (liabilities) on the following temporary differences: 

 
 2008 2007 

MCIT P=21,045,500 P=10,768,949 
NOLCO 11,604,147 5,714,072 
Unrealized foreign currency exchange losses 3,687,257 1,705,824 
Accrued retirement benefits – 35,111,883 
Allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory obsolescence and others – 123,214,381 

 P=36,336,904 P=176,515,109 

 
 On October 18, 2005, the Supreme Court has rendered its final decision declaring the validity of Republic Act No. 9337 (new EVAT 

Law) which included, among others, (a) provisions for the increase in corporate income tax rate from 32% to 35% effective 
November 1, 2005 and later on reducing the rate to 30% effective January 1, 2009 and (b) the change in allowable deduction for 
interest expense from 38% to 42% effective November 1, 2005 and 33% beginning January 1, 2009. 

 
 The Group’s NOLCO and MCIT will expire in the following years: 
 

  NOLCO  

Year Incurred Expiry Date At Gross Tax Benefit MCIT 

2006 2009 P=4,215,542 P=1,264,663 P=6,258,325 
2007 2010 31,436,161 9,430,848 11,740,375 
2008 2011 3,028,788 908,636 18,046,800 

  P=38,680,491 P=11,604,147 P=36,045,500 
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The following shows the movement of NOLCO and MCIT in 2008 and 2007: 

 
NOLCO 2008 2007 

Beginning of the year P=71,785,328 P=15,438,011 
Addition 3,028,788 63,698,112 
Applied portion (36,133,625) (7,350,795) 

 P=38,680,491 P=71,785,328 

 
MCIT 2008 2007 

Beginning of the year P=20,904,664 P=18,324,764 
Addition 18,046,800 11,740,375 
Expired portion (2,905,964) (9,160,475) 

 P=36,045,500 P=20,904,664 

 
The reconciliation between the statutory and effective income tax rates follows: 

 
 2008 2007 2006 

Statutory income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 
Add (deduct) reconciling items:    
 Equity in net earnings of associates  

and joint ventures (23.6) (30.0) (27.5) 
 Income subjected to final taxes at lower rates (0.3) (0.4) (0.5) 
 Change in unrecognized deferred taxes (7.2) (6.6) (3.8) 
 Effect of adjustment due to change in statutory tax rate 2.6 – – 
 Others 26.5 28.7 17.0 

Effective income tax rate 33.0% 26.7% 20.2% 

 
 

25. Related Party Transactions 
 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant 
influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.  Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject 
to common control or common significant influence.  Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.  
 
Transactions with related parties and other transactions are made at rates agreed upon by the parties. 

 
The outstanding due and demandable balances of related party transactions in the consolidated balance sheets consist of the following: 

 
 2008 2007 

Due from associates:   
 SECC  P=12,654,730 P=28,548,078 
 ARCC 8,625,445 7,151,721 
Due from related parties   
 Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation and  Subsidiaries 18,988,898 17,669,408 
 IPeople and Subsidiaries 6,579,689 4,399,078 
 Malayan High School of Sciences, Inc. (Pandacan Properties) 3,324,374 11,747,563 
 House of Investments and Subsidiaries 2,339,895 1,442,749 
 Grepalife Holdings and Subsidiaries 1,118,810 366,412 
 Malayan Insurance Company 870,023 412,931 
 Malayan Colleges Laguna, Inc. 520,082 72,802,166 
 Philippine Integrated Advertising Agency 130,977 104,641 

 55,152,923 144,644,747 
Receivable from EEI Retirement Fund, Inc. (included in other 

noncurrent assets) (Note 13) 441,388,250 
 

455,655,751 

 P=496,541,173 P=600,300,498 

   
Due to related parties:   
 First Malayan Leasing Finance Corporation P=3,887,280 P=3,393,311 
 Malayan Rental Corporation 1,344,224 – 
 House of Investments, Inc. (HI) 763,915 4,249,225 
 People Eserve 49,917 – 

 P=6,045,336 P=7,642,536 

 
Entities under due to related parties, except for HI which is the Parent Company of the Group, are considered related parties since these 
entities are subsidiaries of HI. 
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In 2008 and 2007, transactions with associates pertain to cash advances and settlement of accounts, which arose from reimbursement of 
expenses and administrative service agreements. 

 
The amounts due to Malayan Colleges, Inc. consist mainly of cash advances with interest rates ranging from 11.5% to 13%. 
 
In 2008 and 2007, the Parent Company entered into various lease agreements with Malayan Rental Corporation and First Malayan 
Leasing and Finance Corporation.  The terms shall be for 4 to 5 years and payable monthly based on the due dates set forth in the 
contracts without the necessity of any formal demand.  Total expense charged to operations amounted to P=9,220,146 and P=372,667 in 
2008 and 2007, respectively. 
 
On May 31, 2005, GAMSI entered into a deed of assignment (with recourse) with Landev, an affiliate, whereby GAMSI assigned to 
Landev all of its rights in service fees under GAMSI’s Service Agreement with RCBC Savings Bank (RSB) for two years amounting to 
P=32,786,572.  In consideration for such assignment of receivables, GAMSI received the present value of the assigned receivables 
amounting to P=27,630,352.  The deed of assignment provides, among others, a guarantee by GAMSI of payment to Landev of any and 
all sums due under the RSB service agreement amounting to P=1,366,107 per month and collateral in the form of GAMSI’s receivables 
from its service agreement with other clients.  Interest expense from this financing activity amounted to P=2,371,852 in 2006. 

 
 In 2006, the Parent Company sold the land reported under Land Classified as Held-for-Sale (in 2005) and land reported under Property, 

Plant and Equipment (see Note 11) amounting to P=164,573,937 and P=651,505,500, respectively to EEI Retirement Fund Inc., as a 
trustee of EEI Corporation employees retirement fund (the Fund).  The Fund is managed by RCBC Trust and Investment Division.  The 
parcels of land sold are located in Manggahan, Quezon City and Bauan, Batangas.  The selling price of the land (including 
improvements) is P=1,001,014,500 (which is basically the fair market value based on the latest appraisal report of a reputable 
professional appraiser) and the carrying value of the properties as of the date of the sale is P=926,647,642 which resulted to a gain, net of 
related expenses, amounting to P=46,518,118 (included in other income).  The Fund paid P=532,325,000 to the Parent Company and the 
balance of P=468,689,500, included in the other noncurrent assets account, is to be paid by the Fund within seven years with interest 
based on the bank’s lending rate prevailing during the period covered.  

 
In previous years, the carrying value of the land, including improvements (reported under land classified as held for sale and property, 
plant and equipment), included the revaluation increment of P=736,433,894 which was credited as revaluation surplus under the 
stockholders’ equity of the consolidated balance sheets.  The revaluation surplus was used to wipe out the deficit based on the quasi-
reorganization approved by the SEC in 2003 and 2004 (see Note 32). 
 
In January 2007, the Parent Company and EEI Retirement Fund Inc., as a trustee of the Fund, entered into operating lease agreements 
for lease of land and improvements in Manggahan, Quezon City and Bauan, Batangas.  The terms are for one year and renewable at the 
option of the Parent Company provided that for each and every renewal, the monthly rentals shall be increased upon mutual agreement 
of both parties. 

 
Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Group 

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management are as follows: 
 

 2008 2007 2006 

Short-term benefits P=41,778,000 P=38,697,497 P=30,570,411 
Post-employment benefits – 3,238,553 2,558,406 

 P=41,778,000 P=41,936,050 P=33,128,817 

 
 

26. Retirement Cost 
 

The Parent Company and certain subsidiaries have funded, noncontributory defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all of 
their employees.  Retirement costs are actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method.  Retirement expense charged 
to operations as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to P=53,757,360 and P=66,223,419, respectively. 

 
 The following tables summarize the components of the retirement expense recognized in the consolidated statements of income and the 

funded status and amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets for the retirement plan. 
 

Retirement expense consists of: 
 

 2008 2007 2006 

Current service cost P=25,014,071 P=30,049,161 P=27,586,641 
Interest expense on obligations 31,751,837 27,645,966 23,611,684 
Expected return on plan assets (16,922,837) (12,614,653) (3,306,481) 
Amortization of additional retirement liability 

 
12,945,678 

 
12,945,679 

 
12,945,678 

Asset ceiling adjustment 725,437 6,649,315 (1,827,694) 
Recognized actuarial losses 243,174 1,547,951 458,591 

 P=53,757,360 P=66,223,419 P=59,468,419 

 
 The actual return on the plan assets amounted to P=4,645,435 and P=9,150,190 in 2008 and 2007, respectively. 
 

53               
2008 Annual report  EEI



 
 The reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation and the accrued retirement asset (included in noncurrent assets) and 

liability (included in accounts payable and accrued expense) in the consolidated balance sheets follows: 
 

 2008 2007 

Present value of defined benefit obligations P=201,648,820 P=308,219,754 
Fair value of plan assets (272,787,958) (237,538,118) 

 (71,139,138) 70,681,636 
Unamortized additional retirement liability (12,945,678) (25,891,357) 
Unrecognized actuarial gain (loss) 84,465,976 (53,599,581) 

Net retirement liability (asset) 381,160 (8,809,302) 

Retirement asset 10,949,004 21,815,502 

Retirement liability P=11,330,164 P=13,006,200 

 
 The discount rate at end of the year increased from 10.36% in 2007 to 31.29% in 2008.  Accordingly, this decreased the present value 

of defined benefit obligation resulting to unrecognized actuarial gain.  The excess of the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial losses 
are amortized over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plan. 

 
 The Group expects to contribute P=57,243,156 to the fund in 2009.  The contribution is essential to meet the expected return on the plan 

assets that will minimize the actuarial losses that form part of the pension expense. 
 
Changes in the present value of defined obligation follow: 

 
 2008 2007 

Balance at beginning of year P=308,219,755 P=386,086,295 
Interest expense on obligations 31,751,877 27,645,966 
Current service cost 25,014,071 30,049,161 
Benefits paid (15,647,360) (4,493,472) 
Actuarial gain  (147,689,523) (131,068,196) 

Balance at end of year P=201,648,820 P=308,219,754 

 
Changes in the fair value of plan assets follow: 

 
 2008 2007 

Balance at beginning of year P=237,538,118 P=120,240,460 
Expected return on plan assets 16,922,837 12,614,653 
Contributions 46,053,996 112,640,940 
Actuarial gain (12,079,633) (3,464,463) 
Benefits paid (15,647,360) (4,493,472) 

Balance at end of year P=272,787,958 P=237,538,118 

 
The Group’s annual contribution to the retirement plan consists of payment covering the current service cost for the year plus 
amortization of the actuarial accrued liability, interest cost on unfunded liability and actuarial gains or losses. 
 
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows: 

 
 2008 2007 

Deposit in bank 20% 62% 
Investments 76% 26% 
Receivables 4% 12% 

 100% 100% 

 
 The overall expected rate of return on plan assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date applicable to the 

period over which the obligation is to be settled.  Principal actuarial assumptions used to determine pension obligations follow: 
 

 2008 2007 

Discount rate   
 Beginning of year 10.36% 7.16% 
 End of year 31.29% 10.36% 
Expected rate of return   
 Beginning of year 5.28% 10.49% 
 End of year 6.88% 5.28% 
Salary increases   
 Beginning of year 9.00% 9.86% 
 End of year 9.63% 9.00% 
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Amounts of the fair value (deficit) of plan assets for the current and previous periods are as follows: 

 
 2008 2007 

Present value of defined benefit obligation (P=201,648,820) (P=308,219,754) 
Fair value of plan assets 272,787,958 237,538,118 

Fair value (deficit) of plan assets P=71,139,138 (P=70,681,636) 

 
Amounts of experience adjustments follow: 

 
 2008 2007 

Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (P=2,763,950) P=2,996,029 
Experience adjustments on plan assets (1,112,171) (3,464,463) 

 
Changes in the additional retirement liability follow: 

 
 2008 2007 2006 

Balance at beginning of year P=25,891,357 P=38,837,036 P=51,782,714 
Less amortization during the year 12,945,678 12,945,679 12,945,678 

Balance at end of year P=12,945,679 P=25,891,357 P=38,837,036 

 
 

27. Earnings Per Share 
 

The following table presents information necessary to calculate earnings per share: 
 

 2008 2007 2006 

Net income P=506,333,530 P=304,084,804 P=200,224,494 
Weighted average number of common shares 1,036,326,334 1,000,825,953 915,204,099 

Earnings per share - basic/diluted P=0.4886 P=0.3038 P=0.2188 

 
 The exercise price of unexercised stock options is still higher than the average market price during the year making the options anti-

dilutive, hence, no diluted earnings per share is calculated. 
 
 The rollforward analysis of the number of shares for 2008, 2007 and 2006 follows: 

 
 2008 2007 2006 

Balance at beginning of year 1,036,251,283 915,204,099 911,476,446 
Subscribed shares – – 3,727,653 
Issuance through stock rights offering – 120,000,000 – 
Issuance during the year 150,104 1,047,184 – 

 1,036,401,387 1,036,251,283 915,204,099 
Treasury shares (119,901) (119,901) (119,901) 

Balance at end of year 1,036,281,486 1,036,131,382 915,084,198 

 
 

28. Segment Information 
 

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on geographical location, which comprises of two main 
groupings as follows: 
 

• Domestic - all transaction and contracts entered in the Philippines. 

• Foreign - all transactions and contracts entered outside the Philippines. 
ARCC - Al Rushaid Construction Company Limited; incorporated in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, NC - EEI-
Nouvelle Caledonie SARL; incorporated in New Caledonie, CJ - Clear Jewel International, Limited and EEI BVI - 
EEI (BVI) Limited; both incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. 
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Management monitors construction revenue and segment net income for the purpose of making decision about resources allocation. 
Segment performance is evaluated based on net income and construction revenue, which is accounted for differently in the consolidated 
statement of income. 

 

 2008 

 Domestic Foreign Combined Elimination Consolidated 

Assets      

 Current assets P=5,600,292,950 P=5,846,297,760 P=11,446,590,711  (P=6,390,542,679) P=5,056,048,032 

 Noncurrent assets 2,147,927,312 2,494,773,123 4,642,700,435 (2,592,746,759) 2,049,953,676 

Total Assets 7,748,220,262 8,341,070,883 16,089,291,145 (8,983,289,438) 7,106,001,708 

Liabilities      

 Current liabilities 4,819,134,867 5,995,127,342 10,814,262,209 (6,883,677,255) 3,930,584,954 

 Noncurrent liabilities 413,268,680 210,485,104 623,753,784 (211,102,818) 412,650,966 

Total Liabilities 5,232,403,547 6,205,612,446 11,438,015,993 (7,094,780,073) 4,343,235,920 

Revenue      

 Construction 5,766,328,870 13,035,933,230 18,802,262,100 (10,154,967,350) 8,647,294,750 

 Services 865,605,066 – 865,605,066 (634,935,537) 230,669,528 

 Others 330,306,058 – 330,306,058 (17,846,774) 312,459,284 

Total Revenue 6,962,239,994 13,035,933,230 19,998,173,224 (10,807,749,661) 9,190,423,562 

Direct cost (6,031,966,492) (10,490,159,165) (16,522,125,657) 8,188,581,258 (8,333,544,399) 

Operating expenses (564,053,983) (1,501,472,066) (2,065,526,049) 1,362,050,543 (703,475,506) 

Interest expense (267,020,357) (8,782,600) (275,802,957) 17,565,201 (258,237,757) 

Other income (charges) 201,279,453 256,500,048 457,779,501 (167,716,495) 290,063,006 

Distribution of ARCC’s net income – (656,953,902) (656,953,902) 1,288,120,319 631,166,417 

Income before tax 300,478,615 635,065,545 935,544,160 (119,148,835) 816,395,323 

Net income P=267,808,314 P=357,674,052 P=625,482,365 (P=119,148,835) P=506,333,530 

Number of employees 6,039 8,548 14,587 – 14,587 

 

 2007 

 Domestic Foreign Combined Elimination Consolidated 

Assets      

 Current assets P=6,050,883,417 P=3,317,585,643 P=9,368,469,060 (P=3,992,752,950) P=5,375,716,110 

 Noncurrent assets 1,904,821,907 1,725,829,778 3,630,651,685 (1,952,553,876) 1,678,097,809 

Total Assets 7,955,705,324 5,043,415,421 12,999,120,745 (5,945,306,826) 7,053,813,919 

Liabilities      

 Current liabilities 4,962,820,494 3,496,657,029 8,459,477,524 (4,262,373,793) 4,197,103,731 

 Noncurrent liabilities 604,341,219 65,864,061 670,205,280 (65,864,061) 604,341,219 

Total Liabilities 5,567,161,713 3,562,521,090 9,129,682,804 (4,328,237,854) 4,801,444,950 

Revenue      

 Construction 5,354,494,633 6,260,685,038 11,615,179,671 (4,792,470,744) 6,822,708,927 

 Services 572,839,637 – 572,839,637 (237,562,345) 335,277,292 

 Others 324,756,813 – 324,756,813 – 324,756,813 

Total Revenue 6,252,091,083 6,260,685,038 12,512,776,121 (5,030,033,089) 7,482,743,032 

Direct cost (5,625,957,735) (4,979,086,575) (10,605,044,310) 3,773,393,995 (6,831,650,314) 

Operating expenses (456,441,515) (718,984,129) (1,175,425,644) 641,790,897 (533,634,747) 

Interest expense (175,554,037) (9,152,214) (184,706,251) 18,304,427 (166,401,824) 

Other income (charges) 195,881,137 171,939,629 367,820,766 (260,178,739) 107,642,026 

Distribution of ARCC’s net income  – (370,762,901) (370,762,901) 726,986,080 356,223,179 

Income before tax 190,018,933 354,638,848 544,657,781 (129,736,428) 414,921,352 

Net income P=189,683,112 P=244,138,120 P=433,821,232 (P=129,736,428) P=304,084,804 

Number of employees 10,740 7,444 18,184 – 18,184 

 
Notes to operating segments: 

 1. The foreign segment above includes the results of operations of ARCC at 100%.  The consolidated financial statements of the 
Group present its 49% share in ARCC under the equity in net earnings account. 

 2. Intersegment charges are eliminated on consolidation. 
 3. Construction revenues were earned from external customers. 
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29. Financial Assets and Liabilities 
 

Set out below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of all of the Group’s financial instruments that are 
carried in the financial statements.  There are no material unrecognized financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2008 and 
2007. 

 
 2008 2007 

 Carrying Values Fair  Values Carrying Value Fair values

Financial Assets    
Loans and receivables    

Cash and cash equivalents    
Cash on hand and in banks P=590,413,975 P=590,413,975 P=451,472,756 P=451,472,756
Short-term investments 588,939,693 588,939,693 207,190,179 207,190,179

Receivables     
Trade receivables 1,582,734,382 1,582,734,382 1,042,789,227 1,042,789,227
Advances to suppliers and       
     subcontractors 155,339,441 155,339,441 461,482,022 461,482,022
Reimbursable taxes 142,638,598 142,638,598 54,563,557 54,563,557
Consultancy fee 119,482,007 119,482,007 62,281,345 62,281,345
Refundable from tax  

          authorities 231,891,050 231,891,050 259,653,564 259,653,564
Advances to officers and     
     employees 24,740,320 24,740,320 29,672,570 29,672,570
Other receivables 132,031,872 132,031,872 37,635,005 37,635,005

Due from related parties 55,152,923 55,152,923 144,644,747 144,644,747
Other noncurrent assets    

Receivable from retirement fund  441,388,250 419,501,543 455,655,751 454,640,292
Long-term receivables 19,823,827 19,031,673 25,555,491 22,087,874

Available-for-sale securities    

Quoted shares 19,109,064 19,109,064 26,181,167 26,181,167
Unquoted shares 86,460,506 86,460,506 72,958,005 72,958,005

 P=4,190,145,908 P=4,167,467,047 P=3,331,735,386 P=3,327,252,310

 
 2008 2007 

 Carrying Values Fair  Values Carrying Value Fair values

Financial Liabilities    
Financial liabilities at amortized cost    
Bank loans    

Secured bank loans P=557,900,000 P=557,900,000 P=348,375,000 P=348,375,000
Unsecured bank loans 785,000,000 785,000,000 657,000,000 657,000,000

Accounts payable and accrued expenses    
Accounts payable 748,868,357 748,868,357 493,865,036 493,865,036
Accrued expenses 535,955,446 535,955,446 419,728,164 419,728,164
Retention payables 177,415,774 177,415,774 172,776,223 172,776,223
Advances from joint venture partners 31,055,086 31,055,086 42,689,401 42,689,401
Others 112,040,594 112,040,594 95,409,773 95,409,773

Due to related parties 6,045,336 6,045,336 7,642,536 7,642,536
Long-term debt 467,719,987 623,893,004 496,038,581 555,753,200

 P=3,422,000,580 P=3,578,173,597 P=2,733,524,714 P=2,793,239,333

  
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument for which it is 
practicable to estimate such value: 
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Receivables and Due from Related Parties 

Due to the short-term nature of transactions, the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and due from related parties 
approximate their carrying amounts. 
 

Other Noncurrent Assets 

The fair values of receivables from retirement fund and long-term receivables are estimated as the present value of all future cash 
flows discounted using the applicable rates for similar loans.  Discount rates used ranged from 7.60% to 8.08%. 

 
Available-for-sale Securities 

The fair values of quoted equity securities are based on quoted market prices.  In the absence of a reliable basis of determining 
fair values due to the unpredictable nature of future cash flows and the lack of suitable methods in arriving at a reliable fair value, 
the unquoted equity securities are carried at cost.  

 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses, Bank Loans and Due to Related Parties 

The carrying amounts of accounts payable and accrued expenses, bank loans and due to related parties approximate their fair 
values due to the short-term nature of the transaction. 
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Long-term Debt 

The fair value is estimated as the present value of all future cash flows discounted using the applicable rates for similar loans.  
Discount rates used ranged from 7.5% to 9.0%. 

 
 In 2008, the Parent Company incurred a loss arising from its foreign exchange agreements with certain financial institutions.  The loss 

is included in the “Foreign exchange loss - net” account in the 2008 consolidated statement of income.  This loss was offset with the 
substantial foreign exchange gains arising from the Group’s foreign exchange receipts. 

 
 

30. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 
 

The Group’s principal financial instruments are composed of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, AFS, payables and debt.  The 
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finances for the Group’s operations.  
 
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.  The policies for managing 
these risks are summarized as follows: 

 
Credit Risk 
The exposure to credit risk on its receivables relates primarily to the inability of project owners to fully settle the unpaid balance of 
contract receivables and other claims owed to the Group.  Credit risk is managed in accordance with the Group’s credit risk policy 
which requires the evaluation of the creditworthiness of the project owners such as financial performance for the past three years. 

 
The Group does not have any significant concentration of credit risk.  Its maximum exposure to credit risk is equivalent to face amount 
of its financial assets. 
 
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the consolidated balance sheet.  The maximum 
exposure is shown gross, before the effect of mitigation through the use of master netting arrangements or collateral agreements. 

 
Balance sheet items 2008 2007 

Loans and receivables   
Cash and cash equivalents   

Cash on hand and in banks P=590,413,975 P=451,472,756 
Short-term investments 588,939,693 207,190,179 

Receivables   
Trade receivables 1,582,734,382 1,042,789,227 
Advances to suppliers and subcontractors 155,339,441 461,482,022 

 Reimbursable taxes 142,638,598 54,563,557 
 Consultancy fee 119,482,007 62,281,345 

Refundable from tax authorities 231,891,050 259,653,564 
Advances to officers and employees 24,740,320 29,672,570 
Other receivables 132,031,872 37,635,005 

Due from related parties 55,152,923 144,644,747 
Other noncurrent assets   

Receivable from retirement fund 441,388,250 455,655,751 
Long-term receivables 19,823,827 25,555,491 
Others 18,712,499 19,789,651 

Available-for-sale securities   
Quoted shares 19,109,064 26,181,167 
Unquoted shares 86,460,506 72,958,005 

Total credit risk exposure P=4,208,858,407 P=3,351,525,037 

 
The analysis of trade receivables (including retention receivables), advances to suppliers and subcontractors, refundable form tax 
authorities, advances to officers and employees, due from related parties and other receivables are as follows: 

 
 2008 

 

Neither 
Past Due 

nor Impaired <30 days 
30 to <60 

days 
60 to <90 

days 
>90 

days 

Impaired 
Financial 

Assets Total 

Trade receivables P=663,056,322 P=294,942,000 P=57,147,822 P=60,015,782 P=350,669,497 P=156,902,959 P=1,582,734,382 
Advances to suppliers and 
 subcontractors 1,910,249 1,706,434 433,252 1,190,551 135,372,583 14,726,372 155,339,441 
Reimbursable taxes 142,638,598 – – – – – 142,638,598 
Consultancy fee – – – – 119,482,007 – 119,482,007 
Refundable from tax 
 authorities – – – – 230,914,781 976,269 231,891,050 
Advances to officers and 
 employees 7,345,442 591,199 20,250 – 16,783,429 – 24,740,320 
Other receivables 54,004,920 1,366,281 3,001,035 2,791,654 36,864,810 34,003,169 132,031,869 

 868,955,531 298,605,914 60,602,359 63,997,987 890,087,107 206,608,769 2,388,857,667 
Due from related parties 55,152,923 – – – – – 55,152,923 

 P=924,108,454 P=298,605,914 P=60,602,359 P=63,997,987 P=890,087,107 P=206,608,769 P=2,444,010,590 
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 2007 

 
Neither Past Due 

nor Impaired <30 days 
30 to <60 

days 
60 to <90 

days 
>90 

days 
Impaired Financial 

Assets Total 

Trade receivables P=421,756,911 P=46,700,724 P=22,214,621 P=18,249,691 P=347,650,870 P=186,216,410 P=1,042,789,227 
Advances to suppliers and 
 subcontractors 426,808,994 82,520 1,641,613 765,557 17,456,966 14,726,372 461,482,022 
Reimbursable taxes 54,563,557 − − − − − 54,563,557 
Consultancy fee − − − − 62,281,345 − 62,281,345 
Refundable from tax 
 authorities − − − − 249,653,564 10,000,000 259,653,564 
Advances to officers and  
 employees 7,723,128 4,807,819 8,535,651 1,648,895 6,957,077 – 29,672,570 
Other receivables 4,329,149     33,305,856 37,635,005 

 915,181,739 51,591,063 32,391,885 20,664,143 683,999,822 244,248,638 1,948,077,290 
Due from related parties 144,644,747 − − − − − 144,644,747 

 P=1,059,826,486 P=51,591,063 P=32,391,885 P=20,664,143 P=683,999,822 P=244,248,638 P=2,092,722,037 

 
The risk that past due receivables from project owners will not be collected is mitigated by the fact  that the Group can resort to carry 
out its constructor’s lien over the project with varying degrees of  effectiveness depending on the jurisprudence applicable on or 
country location of the project.  A constructor’s lien is the legal right of a constructor (the Parent Company) to takeover the projects-in-
progress and have priority in the settlement of constructor’s receivables and claims on the project in the event of insolvency of the 
project owner.  The Group assesses that the value of projects in-progress is usually higher than receivables from and future 
commitments with the project owners.  Trade and retention receivables from project owners are normally high standard because of the 
creditworthiness of project owners and the collection remedy of constructor’s lien accorded constructor in certain cases. 

 
The table below summarizes the credit quality of the Group’s neither past due nor impaired receivables, AFS securities and other 
current and noncurrent assets. 
 
 2008 

 Neither Past Due nor Impaired Past Due but  Impairment  

 High Grade Standard Grade not Impaired Financial Assets Total 

Receivables      
 Trade receivables P=119,011,894 P=544,044,428 P=762,775,101 P=156,902,959 P=1,582,734,382 
 Advances to suppliers and 
  subcontractors 1,910,249 

– 
138,702,820 14,726,372 155,339,441 

 Reimbursable taxes 142,638,598 – – – 142,638,598 
 Consultancy fee – – 119,482,007 – 119,482,007 
 Refundable from tax authorities – – 230,914,781 976,269 231,891,050 
 Advances to officers and 
  employees 7,345,442 – 17,394,878 – 24,740,320 
 Other receivables 51,916,069 2,088,851 44,023,780 34,003,169 132,031,869 
 Due from related parties 55,152,923 – – – 55,152,923 

 P=377,975,175 P=546,133,279 P=1,313,293,367 P=206,608,769 P=2,444,010,590 

      
AFS securities      

Quoted shares P=– P=19,109,064 P=– P=– P=19,109,064 
Unquoted shares – 86,460,506 – – 86,460,506 

 P=– P=105,569,570 P=– P=– P=105,569,570 

 
 2007 

 Neither Past Due nor Impaired Past Due but Impairment  

 High Grade Standard Grade not Impaired  Financial Assets Total 

Receivables      
 Trade receivables P=404,985,456 P=16,771,455 P=434,815,906 P=182,547,033 P=1,039,119,850 
 Advances to suppliers and 
  subcontractors 426,808,994 – 19,946,656 14,726,372 461,482,022 
 Reimbursable taxes 54,563,557 – – – 54,563,557 
 Consultancy fee – – 62,281,345 – 62,281,345 
 Refundable from tax authorities – – 249,653,564 10,000,000 259,653,564 
 Advances to officers and 
  employees 7,723,128 – 

 
21,949,442 – 29,672,570 

 Other receivables 4,329,149   33,305,856 37,635,005 
 Due from related parties 144,644,747 – – – 144,644,747 

 P=1,043,055,031 P=16,771,455 P=788,646,913 P=240,579,261 P=2,089,052,660 

      
AFS financial assets      

Quoted shares P=– P=26,181,167 P=– P=– P=26,181,167 
Unquoted shares – 72,958,005 – – 72,958,005 

 P=– P=99,139,172 P=– P=– P=99,139,172 
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 2008 

 Neither Past Due nor Impaired Individually  

 High Grade Standard Grade 

Past Due but  
not Impaired Impaired Total 

Other noncurrent assets     
Receivable from retirement fund P=– P=441,388,250 P=– P=– P=441,388,250 
Long-term receivables – 19,823,827 – – 19,823,827 

 P=– P=461,212,077 P=– P=– P=461,212,077 

 
 2007 

 Neither Past Due nor Impaired Past Due but  Individually  

 High Grade Standard Grade not Impaired Impaired Total 

Other noncurrent assets     
Receivable from retirement fund P=– P=455,655,751 P=– P=– P=455,655,751 
Long-term receivables – 25,555,491 – – 25,555,491 

 P=– P=481,211,242 P=– P=– P=481,211,242 

 
Neither past due nor impaired trade receivables (including retention receivables) and other receivables are classified into ‘high grade’ 
and ‘standard grade’.  Neither past due nor impaired advances to officers and employees and due from related parties are normally 
‘high grade’ in nature.  The Group sets financial assets as ‘high grade ‘based on the Group’s positive collection experience.  On the 
other hand, ‘standard grade’ are those which have credit history of default in payments.  The Group’s AFS financial assets and other 
noncurrent assets are classified as standard grade financial assets because these assets are susceptible to untoward consequences due to 
the current financial positions of the counterparties. 

 
Liquidity Risk  
Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with 
financial instruments.  Liquidity risk may result from either the inability to sell financial assets quickly at their fair values; or 
counterparty failing on repayment of a contractual obligation or inability to generate cash inflows as anticipated. 

 
Short-term and long-term funding is obtained to finance capital expenditures and working capital. Credit lines are obtained from BOD-
designated banks at amounts based on financial forecasts approved by BOD.  

 
The table summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 based on contractual 
undiscounted payments (both principal and interest). 

 
 2008 

 On demand < 1 year 1 to < 2 years 2 to < 3 years >3 years Total 

Accounts payable and  
 accrued expenses P=1,402,127,408 P=353,616,378 P=− P=− P=− P=1,755,743,786 
Bank loans       
 Peso loan  − 1,342,900,000 − − − 1,342,900,000 
 Interest − 22,911,477 − − − 22,911,477 
Long-term debt       
 Peso loan − 144,050,722 138,082,330 141,309,504 44,277,431 467,719,987 
 Interest  24,962,384 14,727,205 4,407,205 − 44,096,794 
Due to related parties 6,045,336 − − − − 6,045,336 

 P=1,408,172,744 P=1,888,440,961 P=152,809,535 P=145,716,709 P=44,277,431 P=3,639,417,380 

 
 2007 

 On demand < 1 year 1 to < 2 years 2 to < 3 years >3 years Total 

Accounts payable and  
 accrued expenses P=1,178,571,312 P=191,479,769 P=− P=− P=− P=1,370,051,081 
Bank loans       
 Peso loan  − 1,005,375,000 − − − 1,005,375,000 
 Interest − 18,988,328 − − − 18,988,328 
Long-term debt       
 Peso loan − 125,094,791 158,334,556 161,228,762 51,380,472 496,038,581 
 Interest − − 29,219,534 17,238,822 5,158,822 51,617,178 
Due to related parties 7,642,536 – − − − 7,642,536 

 P=1,186,213,848 P=1,340,937,888 P=187,554,090 P=178,467,584 P=56,539,294 P=2,949,712,704 

 
Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market 
interest rates (interest rate risk), foreign exchange rates (foreign currency risk) and market prices (equity price risk). 

 

• Interest Rate Risk 

The Group’s exposure to market rate risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s variable short-term and 
long-term obligations.  The Group follows prudent policies in managing its exposures to interest rate fluctuations, and constantly 

60            EEI   
2008 Annual report



 
monitors its assets and liabilities.  The Group also monitors its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates by using scenario analysis 
to estimate the impact of interest rate movements on its interest income and expense. 
 

The Group is exposed to receivables and borrowings with floating interest rates.  The long-term receivable from EEI Retirement 
Fund, Inc. is earning 6% interest rate per annum.  The outstanding principal as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to 
P=441.4 million and P=455.6 million, respectively with last floating rate of 6% and 8.82%, respectively.  The following table sets 
out the carrying amount, by maturity, of the Group’s long term debt as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 that are exposed to 
interest rate risk: 

 

 < 1 year 1 to < 2 years 2 to < 3 years >3 years Total 

2008 P=144,050,722 P=138,082,330 P=141,309,504 P=44,277,431 P=467,719,987 
2007 125,094,791 158,334,556 161,228,762 51,380,472 496,038,581 

 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all variables held constant, 
of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings). 
 

 2008 

 
Increase/decrease 

in basis points 
Effect on profit 

before tax 

Peso floating rate receivables +100 P=4,659,611 
 -100 (4,659,611) 
   

Peso floating rate borrowings +100 4,000,000 
 -100 (4,000,000) 

 

 2007 

 
Increase/decrease 

in basis points 
Effect on profit 

before tax 

Peso floating rate receivables +100 P=4,954,995 
 -100 (4,954,995) 
   

Peso floating rate borrowings +100 (4,000,000) 
 -100 4,000,000 

 

There are no other effects of the interest rate sensitivity on the Group’s stockholders’ equity other than those already affecting the 
consolidated statements of income. 
 

• Foreign Currency Risk 

Currency risk is the potential decline in the value of the financial instruments due to exchange rate fluctuations.  The Group’s 
currency arise mainly from cash and receivables which are denominated in a currency other than the Group’s functional currency 
or will be denominated in such a currency. 
 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar (USD), Singaporean dollar 
(SGD), Japanese yen (YEN) and Euro (EUR) currency rates, with all variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due 
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities): 
 

 2008 

 Percentage increase/decrease 
 in foreign currency 

Effect on profit 
before tax 

USD +15% P=25,346,598 
SGD +15% (774,631) 
EUR +9% 407,115 
YEN +5% (14,956) 
   

USD -15% (25,346,598) 
SGD -15% 774,631 
EUR -9% (407,115) 
YEN -5% 14,956 

 
 

 2007 

 
 

Percentage increase/decrease 
in foreign currency 

Effect on profit 
before tax 

   USD +5% P=9,028,465 
   SGD +5% 80,420 
   EUR +5% 57,368 
   

   USD -5% (9,028,465) 
   SGD -5% (80,420) 
   EUR -5% (57,368) 
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There are no other effects of the foreign currency sensitivity on the Group’s stockholders’ equity other than those already 
affecting the consolidated statement of income. 
 
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the foreign currency-denominated financial assets and financial liabilities in original 
currencies and equivalents to the functional and presentation currency are as follows:  
 
 2008 

 USD SGD 
 

EUR YEN 
Equivalents in 

PHP 

Financial assets      
Cash $1,979,949 $56,312 €7,826 ¥− P=97,642,577 
Receivables - net 2,402,460 − 60,457 − 118,722,821 

 4,382,409 56,312 68,283 − 216,365,398 

Financial liabilities      
 Accounts payable and 
  accrued expenses 

 
826,489 

 
214,093 

 
− 

 
572,900 

 
39,893,393 

 3,555,920 (157,781) €68,283 (¥572,900) P=176,472,005 

 
 2007 

 USD SGD EUR 
Equivalents in 

PHP 

Financial assets     
Cash $1,556,425 $56,312 €18,947 P=52,516,334 
Receivables - net 3,214,965   131,829,066 

 4,771,390 56,312 18,947 184,345,400 

Financial liability     
Accounts payable and accrued   
 expenses 

 
397,134 

 
− 

 
− 

 
19,678,459 

 $4,374,256 $56,312 €18,947 P=164,666,941 

 

• Equity Price Risk 

The Group’s equity price risk exposure at year-end relates to financial assets whose values will fluctuate as a result of changes in 
market prices, principally, equity securities classified as AFS financial assets. 

 
Quoted AFS financial assets are subject to price risk due to changes in market values of instruments arising either from factors 
specific to individual instruments or their issuers or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market. 
 
The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in the PSE index with all other variables held constant, 
showing the impact on equity: 
 
 2008 

Market Index Change in variable  Effect on equity 

PSE +30% P=4,151,719 
 -30% (4,151,719) 
   
Others +30% 1,665,000 
 -30% (1,665,000) 

 
 

 2007 

Market Index Change in variable  Effect on equity 

PSE +20% P=4,095,058 
 -20% (4,095,058) 
   
Others +20% 1,272,000 
 -20% (1,272,000) 
   
 
The impact of sensitivity of equity prices on the Group’s stockholders’ equity already excludes the impact on transactions 
affecting the consolidated statements of income. 

 
Capital Management  

 The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to support its 
business and maximize shareholder value. 

 
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.  To maintain or adjust 
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares.  No changes were made in the 
objectives, policies or processes for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007. 
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 The Group monitors capital using a debt to equity ratio, which is total liabilities divided by total stockholders’ equity.  Although some 

of the Group’s loan agreements with banks provide for a maximum debt-to-equity ratio of 5:1, the Group’s policy is to maintain it at a 
lower ratio. 

 
 2008 2007 

Current liabilities P=3,930,584,953 P=3,613,354,081 
Noncurrent liabilities 412,650,965 604,431,221 

Total liabilities (a) 4,343,235,918 4,217,785,302 
Stockholders’ equity (b)  2,762,765,787 2,245,365,540 

Debt to Equity Ratio (a/b) 1.57:1 1.88:1 

 
 

31. Commitments and Contingencies 
 

a. Surety Arrangement and Guarantees 
 

The Parent Company is contingently liable for guarantees arising in the ordinary course of business, including performance, 
surety and warranty bonds for various construction projects amounting to P=0.7 billion and P=0.9 billion as of December 31, 2008 
and 2007, respectively. 

 
b. Sale of Generated Power 

 
On May 12, 1994, EEI Power entered into a service agreement (the Agreement) with Creative Diecast Philippines Corporation 
(CDPC), a domestic corporation, for which the Company has agreed to provide primary power supply to CDPC for 10 years 
starting September 1995 through the establishment of a power station (the Power Plant) in Bo. Maduya, Carmona, Cavite.  In 
September 2005, the Agreement was extended for another five years until September 2010. 
 
In July 2008, the Company and CDPC entered into a Deed of Early Termination of the Agreement for a net gain amounting to 
P=7.8 million after removal cost and derecognition of the Power Plant and its related supplies and parts inventory with carrying 
value and cost at date of derecognition amounting to P=5.1 million and P=3.2 million, respectively. 

 
c. Standby Letters of Credit 

 
The Parent Company has outstanding irrevocable domestic standby letters of credit amounting to both P=3.0 million in 2008 and 
2007 from local banks which are used for bidding and as a guarantee for the down payments received from its ongoing 
construction projects. 

 
d. Contingencies 

 
There are pending legal cases against the Parent Company that are being contested by the Parent Company and its legal counsels.  
Management and its legal counsels believe that the final resolutions of these cases will not have a material effect on the financial 
position and operating results of the Parent Company. 

 
 

32. Quasi-Reorganization 
 

On September 6, 2006, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s plan for quasi-reorganization eliminating the accumulated deficit as of 
December 31, 2005 amounting to P=363,409,537 by applying a portion of the Parent Company’s additional paid-in capital of the same 
amount.  The quasi-reorganization was approved subject to the condition that the remaining additional paid-in capital of P=65,434,383 in 
the books of the Parent Company after the deficit shall have been offset, will not be used to wipe out losses that may be incurred in the 
future without prior approval of the SEC. 
 
Since the quasi-reorganization is done based on the account balances of the separate financial statements of the Parent Company, 
application of this quasi-reorganization to the consolidated financial statements of the Group which has a balance of deficit of only 
P=65,365,410 as of December 31, 2005 resulted to a retained earnings of P=298,044,127. 

 
In 2003 and 2004, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s quasi-reorganization whereby the revaluation increment in land was 
applied against its deficit. 
 
As of December 31, 2006, the revaluation increment in land was already realized as the land was sold in 2006 to EEI Retirement Fund 
Inc., as a trustee of the Fund (see Note 25). 
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33. Stock Rights Offering 
 

On January 15, 2007, the Parent Company filed with SEC a Registration Statement in accordance with the provisions of the Securities 
Regulations Code covering additional 120 million common shares issuance via a pre-emptive stock rights offer as approved by the 
BOD in its meeting on January 2, 2007.  On the same date, the Parent Company also filed an Application for Listing of the offered 
120 million common shares with the Philippine Stock Exchange.  The applications for listing with the Philippine Stock Exchange 
(PSE) and Registration Statement with the SEC were approved on February 14, 2007 and March 8, 2007, respectively.  The offer 
entitles every existing shareholder as of March 8, 2007 one (1) share for every 7.6257 common shares held at an offer price of P=4.50 
per share.  The total 120 million shares offered was fully subscribed with total gross proceeds of P=540 million.  The issued shares were 
listed with the PSE on March 23, 2007.   
 
The excess of the subscription price over the par value net of underwriting expenses amounting to P=405 million was recognized as an 
additional paid-in capital. 
 

 

34. Reclassification of Accounts 
 

Certain accounts in the prior year consolidated financial statements were reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation. 
 
 

35. Subsequent Events 
 

The BOD of the Parent Company in its meeting held on March 20, 2009 declared a cash dividend of P=0.10 per share to common 
stockholders of record broken down as follows: 

 
Record Date Payment Date Amount 

April 7, 2009 April 30, 2009 P=.025 per share 
June 4, 2009 June 30, 2009 P=.025 per share 
September 4, 2009 September 30, 2009 P=.025 per share 
December 2, 2009 December 29, 2009 P=.025 per share 
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Investor 

iNFoRMAtioN

ANNUAL SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING 

The Annual Meeting is held every third
Friday of June. In 2009, the Meeting shall
be on June 19 at 10:00 am at the RCBC Plaza 
Ayala Avenue, Makati City. 

SHARE LISTING 

The shares of the registrant are traded at the Phil. Stock
Exchange, Inc. The number of common shares issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2008 is 1,036,281,485.

There are approximately 3,689 stockholders. 

iNVESTOR INQUIRIES 

For questions regarding shareholder accounts stock 
certificates, dividends and account status, kindly write or call 
the Company’s Stock Transfer agent: 

   RCBC Stock Transfer 
   Yuchengco Tower 
   RCBC Plaza 
   Ayala Ave., Makati City 

Quarterly high, low and closing EEI share 
prices (2008)

  High  Low         Close
First Quarter   3.85 2.34 3.40
Second Quarter   3.35 1.80 1.94
Third Quarter   2.46 1.70 2.12
Fourth Quarter   2.06 0.70 0.76
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